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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights P
MBRHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=t—BLHEE
2014 2013

—F-mE —T=F
HK$'million HK$'million Change
BEET BEBTT

Revenue Wezs 304.6 284.5 7.1%
Profit for the year attributable to AR aE#EzEIFE ABEFA
equity holders of the company B (PEFA LTS &

(excluding listing expenses and BIERY)

share-based payments) 40.9 437 (6.4%)
Less: Listing expenses for the year J& @ FR FHHX (17.6) (1.3)
Less: Share-based payments for W FREERRER

the year (1.7) -

Profit for the year attributable to AN GEZEFH ARG

equity holders of the Company F N5 F 21.6 42.4 (49.1%)
Net cash generated from operating #&&&/EHFTEIR G /F5

activities 49.9 46.3 7.8%

Net profit margin % (excluding FEF % (PET A LTRRX
listing expenses and share-based 2 BEAXHERTST )

payments) 13.4% 15.4%
Gross profit margin % EFZEY 37.6% 36.2%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RREAZF|GE) 5.19 11.32

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H

2014 2013

—E—MF —EF—=F
HK$'million HK$ 'million Change

BERBT BEBT
Total assets BEEE 253.1 192.0 31.8%
Total equity T HR 164.8 71.9 129.2%
Bank balance and deposit IRITHBR TR 134.0 71.1 88.5%
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of eprint Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Business Review

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$304,562,000 for the year ended
31 March 2014, representing a 7.1% increase over the last year. Our
profit for the year was HK$21,577,000. Gross margin and net profit
reached 37.6% and 7.0% respectively. Excluding the listing expenses
and share option expenses for the year totaling HK$19,322,000,
the profit for the year decreased 6.4% from last year and amounted
to HK$40,899,000 and net profit margin dropped 2.0% to 13.4%.
In addition, the net cash generated from operating activities of the
Group for the year grew 7.6% from last year to HK$49,879,000.

BEURR :

KAZERKeprintEBARAR (T ARA )R
EBAR(AB I AEEDER([EE])g
(TEEE)MREEARFEHEZE T —MF
A+ BUEFEZFHK-

EH O

BE-_ZE-—NF=A=+—HILEE #&E&E
[E $% 15 & ¥ 50304,562,000/8 7T * HEFE L
H7.1% - FREF21,577,0008 7T ° T E
FE R4 F KD R AE37.6%KM7.0% Mk
FREMAS RERERRS£19,322,000/%
7T F£N% 540,899,000 7T - MEET
[£6.4% - MALFI R B13.4% @ L EF &
20% ° AN AEBEARFELEEHMG
IR 4 % 58 549,879,000/ T © L EE LI
7.6% °
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Given the overall weak economy and the mildly declining consumer
sentiment in Hong Kong, and the influence of the slowing down in
growth of global printing industry, the growth of the Group’s turnover
in the year was better than expected. The management of the Group
keeps strengthening our efforts on research and development of
new products and expanding into other new markets. With regard
to production costs, in order to cope with increasing costs in rental,
labour and raw materials, the Group has implemented stringent
measures in cost control and optimised the production process, as
well as keeps enhancing the degree of automation in operation so
as to achieve improvement in overall cost and gross margin in order
to maintain the Group’s market share and competitiveness in the
printing industry. Despite adversity and uncertainty in economy, the
management of the Group endeavors to offer high quality products to
its customers so as to establish long-term cooperation with them and
overcome the times of adversity.

The year 2013 was a milestone year for the Group, with its listing
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 3 December 2013 (“Listing Date”). The
successful listing of the Group strengthens its financial position and
establishes a strong capital base for its expansion plan in the future.
Meanwhile, in addition to the listing expenses and share option
expenses, the corresponding increase in its administrative expenses
after listing also affects the Group’s profit for the year.

Prospect

The economy of Hong Kong and the intensity of competition in the
industry are expected to be exacerbated by the abovementioned
factors, which, when combine with the tight labor market in
Hong Kong and the increase in rents, staff cost and cost of raw
materials, pose challenges to the printing industry in the coming
year. Nevertheless, the Group will devote more efforts in diversifying
its product designs and at the same time, enhance its research and
development on high value added products, explore new markets
and expand customer base. The Group will also streamline its
manufacturing process and promote online sales to provide steady
profit for the Group. In May 2014, the Group formed a joint venture
company with an independent third party, which is engaged in banner
design and printing business through the Group’s prime online self-
service platforms. We believe the business will soon flourish and be
the market leader of the banner printing industry in Hong Kong and
the Group will benefit from the synergy arises from the diversified
printing services we offer.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest gratitude
to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their support

over the year. | would also like to extend my gratitude to all our staff
for their contribution to the Group.

She Siu Kee William
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWNR I

Business Review

On 3 December 2013, the Group completed its initial public
offering (“IPO” or “Share Offer”) with its shares successfully listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The IPO has not only
enabled the management team to focus on the development of the
printing business; it also provided investors with a clearer and more
independent view on the operation and financial position of the
commercial printing business.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$304,562,000, an increase of 7.1% as compared with that of
the corresponding year ended 31 March 2013. Gross profit margin
was 37.6% which was 1.4% higher than the corresponding year
ended 31 March 2013. Audited profit attributable to equity holders
for the year ended 31 March 2014 before taking into account of the
listing expenses relating to the Share Offer of HK$17,626,000 and
share-based payments of HK$1,696,000, amounted to approximately
HK$40,899,000. After taking into account the aforesaid listing
expenses and share-based payments, the Group’s audited profit
attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31 March 2014 was
HK$21,577,000.

The Group has a leading position in supplying online printing services
and customised printed products which target at a large and diverse
customer group comprising primarily SMEs, design houses, education
institutes and individual customers, for instance, students. As at 31
March 2014, the Company has 16 retail stores, 4 localised websites
which provide internet-based graphic design software and editing
tools that allow customers to design their desired products by
themselves, and computer-integrated printing facilities in Hong Kong.

e

EAfy =F+-A=8 " AEERMHKI

ﬁﬁiﬁﬁzwuéxk’&%ﬁé‘%((%/X’Aﬁﬁﬁé
%Hﬂﬂxf EDBA LT - BERAFE
! ﬁﬁl% BEE P BRREIRIZE 111;‘5
REEEFW MBI T AR EENRI RTS8
2B R BOROR

HE-_Z-—NF=ZA=Z+—HLFE A&
B 4% 15 U %5304,562,000/8 T * BMEE T
—ZF=ZA=+—HLHEEFEEMT1% °
EFEE376%  BEHE_ZT—=F=FH
Z+—HUIEBEEFE EAH1.4% - Rt R A
B AL () 3 &£ 19 17,626,00008 T FH S &
1,696,000 LS ER AT - BHEZ =T —I1
FZAZ+BLFEMNEEZEZFEREA
JE 1 55 B %) 540,899,000 7T ° E(‘.:‘I‘&J:L

FTHRIEERERSZ  AEEHZE
—mizHEwL—EIJtEEE’\J,%«%W“*
BAEMERA21,577,0008 7T °

AEBEHE —EORLORRYE REFE]
EERE R M pLER z%ﬁﬁkﬁﬁy#
ItHMEFE TZREP /I - RFFQF -

HERBREBLEZMARE - Ffi us:=
ZA=Z+—H ARREEEHB16HETE
B~ AE A A S (3R A Bl G R AT B &
ﬁﬁlﬂ FERFETRAETER) UK
BIGER A EN R A o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R AT

The Group will continue to strengthen its market position and
increase the market share by making use of the following competitive
advantages:

o Well-positioned to seize enormous online market potential

o Comprehensive information technology infrastructure and
unigue eprint system which is automatically operated

o Production facilities located in Hong Kong with more potential
to capture more business opportunities

o Well-recognised local brand
Outlook

Although the Group was affected by fierce industry competition,
high cost of production and shortage of labour supply, the Group
has still achieved a growth in gross profit margin. For the coming
years, Hong Kong market is still the Group’s major market, which is
expected to remain stable. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to
strive for diversifying its business, strengthening the development
of products with higher profit margin, obtaining engagements from
new customers and market, enhancing the production processes,
reinforcing internal controls and implementing stringent control
over the cost in order to achieve stable profit growth of the Group.
Meanwhile, the Group will look for new business opportunities from
time to time to strengthen its market position and implement the
future plan of business strategy stated in the Company’s prospectus
dated 20 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”).

T ——
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B DT

In May 2014, the Group formed a joint venture company “e-banner
Limited” with TBC Group Limited, an independent third party, which
is engaged in banner design and printing business in Hong Kong. The
formation of e-banner Limited can diversify the Group’s business and
product portfolio and create synergy effect with the existing printing
business of the Group.

Under the leadership of the Board, management of the Group has
formed a broad consensus in response to the key improvement areas
in the existing business operation and market expansion in order to
further enhance the Group’s overall competitiveness.

Financial Review
Revenue

Income from the provision of printing services in Hong Kong increased
by approximately HK$20.1 million or 7.1% from approximately
HK$284.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 to approximately
HK$304.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2014. Such increase
was primarily due to the increase of average monthly orders. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue by service
category and their respective percentage of the total revenue for the
years indicated.

RZZE—NFRA  AEEE—FZB
= 3 TBC Group Limited X 32 — & & b %
[e-banner Limited] - REBREBEE R R
ENRI %75 - A 3Ze-banner Limited Al {E A &£ E
MEBMERAEGESZ T THAEEIR
BHIRIETEE S RBRIBUE

HESENRET  ARENEEENEY
REXBEERTSERNEZNELRZ
OHE - RAE— PR ARENERE S
5 o

B 3% B
l 5

EEBRENRREMIEHRARTEEZ-F
—=F=ZA=+—HI-FEH49284,500,000
BT 0 1149 20,100,000 T 7.1% B
HE-_ZT-—NE=ZA=+—HILFENHY
304,600,000/ 7T - BRAEIREREZEHNRFEHE
ARTEMIG I - TRBIIZRBLER S DM
WERARESEERIRFENRKER
pals A

2014 2013

—E-mEF —T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT
Advertising printing & ENR 125,240 41.2% 123,079 43.3%
Bound book printing FEEE B ZENRI 91,161 29.9% 82,805 29.1%
Stationery printing XA EN 79,527 26.1% 71,685 25.2%
Other services E AR 8,634 2.8% 6,929 2.4%
Total Er 304,562 100.0% 284,498 100.0%

Sales mix remained relatively stable and advertising printing was our
primary printing service that accounted for approximately 41% and
43% of our total revenue for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013, respectively.

HEASKABERE - &SR8
WEZRIRE @ SRMEBEZ=_T—NFR
TE-ZF=ZA=T-HILEFELHKREHD
41% 43% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE T im0

2014 2013

—EF-NF —F=%

Sales Channels HK$'000 HK$'000

SHERE FHBT T
Stores = 110,470 36.3% 114,254 40.1%
Websites 48k 115,228 37.8% 100,054 35.2%
Others (Note) E b (B5E) 78,864 25.9% 70,190 24.7%
Total =t 304,562 100.0% 284,498 100.0%

Note: “Others” refers to revenue derived from orders received over the telephone,
through e-mail, e-print mobile application and “Photobook” program.

Websites sales channel contributed approximately 38% of total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2014, which accounted for
approximately 15.2% increase as compared with that of the year
ended 31 March 2013. Such increase was primarily due to the
continuous improvement in our online self-service ordering platform.

Other income

Other income primarily comprises sales of scrap materials, such as
used zinc printing plates and paper scrap, license fee income from
a Group's joint venture and management fee received from several
companies controlled by certain directors of the Company.

Other losses - net

Other losses — net primarily comprises loss on disposal of plant and
equipment and foreign exchange loss.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of delivery
expenses, handling charges for electronic payments received, and
store rentals as well as advertising and marketing expenses. Selling
and distribution expenses represent approximately 5.8% and 5.6%
of the revenue for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

fisk : [Efb]i5mBEE - B - e-printFREAEXR
[Photobook JT2 s\ B MY 5] B8 715 B UL 2 ©

BUHHERENEMEBE_T—HNF=
A=+t -BLFERRFENLH38% » BE
ZFE-=ZF=ZHA=Z+—-—BLEFE LAY
15.2% ° ZIZREEZHNRMOE LB 8
EEFE T BERTE -

Hl A

Hitp WA T EBEHEREM (PN RN
RNEER) AEE-RaEXNERER
ARPBBARRETESEHNBER A
BHEE -

HtEE| — 8

HpEE - FHEIZERLERE LREN
BB RINEER -

HERDHEAX

HERDHEAXTEREMNERS - AT
VEFRNRFEBREGHSURESRT
SHERY HE_T—NFER_ZT—=F
—A=+—HLFE  HEXDHERID
1Y EE#)5.8% 1 5.6% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B DT

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprise staff costs, outsourced
customer support expenses, information technology support
services expenses, office rental and utilities, depreciation, internet
and telephone expenses, listing expenses and other miscellaneous
administrative expenses. Administrative expenses represent
approximately 24.7% and 14.6% of the total revenue for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase in
administrative expenses was primarily due to the listing expenses
of approximately HK$17.6 million and share-based payments of
approximately HK$1.7 million.

Listing expenses represent professional fees, printing fee and
underwriting commission and fees, other direct expenses incurred in
connection with the listing. Listing expenses borne by the Company
are approximately HK$31.0 million, of which approximately HK$12.1
million is directly attributable to the issue of new shares to the public
and accounted for as a deduction from equity and the remaining
amount of approximately HK$18.9 million is accounted for in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. During the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the amounts of approximately
HK$17.6 million and approximately HK$1.3 million have been
reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively.

Finance income

Finance income primarily consists of interest income from bank
deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on bank
borrowings and finance charges on obligations under finance lease.

Share of profits of joint ventures

Share of profits of joint ventures represent the share of profit of
the Group's joint ventures in each year using equity method of
accounting. During the year, the Company had two entities jointly
controlled in Hong Kong and Malaysia, respectively.

ITHAX

THEAXTIEEFEIRA INMIEPXE
AY - BB EXERBEY - #AE8E
MARREER  WE -  BHAREEHN
Y ETHAIREMBETERAY  HEZ
E-NFERZE—=F=ZA=+T—HFET
BRI IR B INZE4924.7% K 14.6% ° 1T
SN FEERL17,600,0008 T EHHAST R
#31,700,0007% 7T B8 A #E F S P B ©

ETRAXERETHEENZEER - O
BLRBHEBEeRER HMEERY - AA
N B 7 & H) #931,000,00058 T E R
EH 412,100,000 8 TEEFEBRARR
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#918,900,000 8 L AIR & iR & M m &K F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE T im0

Profit and total income

Profit decreased by approximately HK$21.2 million from
approximately HK$42.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 to
approximately HK$21.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2014,
Net profit margin also decreased from approximately 15.0% for the
year ended 31 March 2013 to approximately 7.0% for the year ended
31 March 2014. The decreases in net profit and net profit margin
primarily reflected listing expenses of approximately HK$17.6 million
and share-based payments of approximately HK$1.7 million incurred
during the year.

Profit and total income (excluding listing expenses and
share-based payments)

If excluding the listing expenses and share-based payments,
profit decreased by approximately HK$3.2 million or 7.3%, from
approximately HK$43.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2013
to approximately HK$40.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2014. Net profit margin also decreased from approximately 15.4%
for the year ended 31 March 2013 to approximately 13.4% for the
year ended 31 March 2014. The decrease in our net profit and net
profit margin (excluding listing expenses and share-based payments)
primarily reflected by the increase in employee benefits expenses
(excluding share-based payments) by approximately HK$12.6 million
or 21.3%, from approximately HK$59.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2013 to approximately HK$71.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2014. Such increase was primarily due to the increase of
headcount in order to cope with our business growth.

H--&.

R

i N 52 W ok 48 2R
BARBE T -—ZFZA=ZT—HLFE

/) %) 42,600,000 % 7T Bk 4> #9 21,200,000 %
TEHZE-Z—NF=ZA=+—HILEFEN
#721,400,0008 T - @R EXBEHEE_F
—=ZF=ZA=Z+—BLFEMNL15.0% &
EEE-_Z—NF=ZA=Z+—HLFEHD
7.0% c MR RAEFRETHREIERBFRNLY
17,600,000 7T T FASZ & #J1,700,0007 7T
AR -

BARKBBE(FTFALTREIRER
)

MAFALELTHIERBERERAS - RFH
BE - Z—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILEFEHNY
43,900,000 /& JT &k 2> 49 3,200,000 & 7T =X
I3%E2HE-_T—NFZA=Z+—HILF
JEH%740,700,0008 7T AR R HEE—
E—ZFZAZT—BULEFENNI5.4%R
LPEHE-ZEZ-NF=ZA=+—HIFEHN
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=t+—HIEFER459,100,00078 T I 49
12,600,000/8 L8k21 3% E&E - T —UF
—A=+—RHIFEMH71,700,000/ T °
ZRBEETEREANE TEHEEMUENER
ERATE °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B DT

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2014, the total amount of bank deposit, bank
balances and cash of the Group was approximately HK$134.0 million,
an increase of approximately HK$62.9 million compared with that
as at 31 March 2013. The increase was mainly arising from the net
proceeds of the IPO. As at 31 March 2014, the financial ratios of the
Group were as follows:

Current ratio TEED L M
Gearing ratio @ BEAEBHLER®

RZE—WNE=A=+—H  K&EHEET
T RITHEH LIRS B E4134,000,000
B BT ZFZAZ=Z+—HEMNY
62,900,000/ 7L - IREZ R B B XA
BEMMBREFE R_ZT—WFE=A
=t+—B  AEEHBLERDOT

As at As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
A \
—E—MF
=HA=+-—H
2.3 1.1
21.8% 96.2%

Notes:

(1) Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

(2) Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings and obligation under finance
leases divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

Borrowings

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 March 2014 in the sum
of approximately HK$9.7 million. All bank borrowings were made
from a bank in Hong Kong and were repayable within one year. The
carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and approximate their fair values. These borrowings are at
fixed interest rates. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments. The
weighted average interest rate (per annum) was 5.0%.

Treasury Policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3
December 2013. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Company since the Listing Date. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group has capital commitments
of HK$0.9 million and HK$2.6 million, respectively.

Significant Investments Held

Except for investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, the Group
did not hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other
company during the year.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Except for aforesaid investment and save as disclosed in the
Prospectus, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions

Save for the reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as more particularly
described in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and its business is
supported by an information technology support services centre
located in the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars.
The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange risk as its exposure
to foreign exchange risk is low as the Group’s cash flows mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group pledged the plant and
machinery with a carrying value of approximately HK$44.1 million
and HK$52.0 million respectively, as collaterals to secure the Group
obligation under finance leases.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2014
and 31 March 2013.

Use of Proceeds from the Share Offer

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 December 2013
and raised net proceeds from IPO of approximately HK$66.5 million.
During the period between the listing date and 31 March 2014,
HK$4.8 million of the net proceeds from the listing were utilised in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The
unused proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$13.1 million
in property, plant and equipment, represented a reduction of about
56.0% from capital expenditure of last year.

Employees and Emolument Policies

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 463 full time employees. There
is no significant change in the Group’s emolument policies. On top
of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the Group's
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff benefits
include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by the Group pursuant
to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing regulatory
requirements of the PRC. On 9 May 2014, the Board resolved the
cancellation of 12,500,000 pre-IPO share options granted on 13
November 2013 pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme adopted
on 13 November 2013. For further details regarding the cancellation,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2014.

Dividends

On 11 November 2013, the Board approved to declare an interim
dividend of HK$80 per ordinary share, totalling HK$8,000,000 to its
then shareholders. All dividends were paid on the same date. On 20
June 2014, the Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.04 per ordinary share, totalling HK$20,000,000 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 19 August 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEREB|MSE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the
shareholders’ value.

Corporate Governance Practice

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the
Company was in compliance with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1, which is
explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
at present separate the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer. Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for
the Group. The Board further believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises experienced
and high calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof being
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had met all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014.

The Board will continue to review and further improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices and standards, so as to ensure its
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014.
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Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board currently consists of eleven Directors including three
executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai
Mr. Fung Hong Keung

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shing Kai

Mr. Leung Wai Ming
Mr. Leung Yat Pang
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah

Mr. Chan Chi Yu

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen
Ms. Luk Mei Yan

Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Lam Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming,
Mr. Leung Yat Pang and Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki entered into a deed
of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 confirming the existence of their
acting in concert arrangement to jointly control their respective
interest in the Company held through eprint Limited. Save as
aforesaid, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced
skills and experience for effective leadership. The biographical
information of the Directors are set out on pages 27 to 32 under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance and
management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Group's
management include the implementation of strategies approved by
the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets, the implementation
of internal control procedures, and the ensuring of compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and other rules and regulations.

Board Meetings

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the Board
held one meeting to review and approve the 2013 interim results
of the Group. All Directors were given an opportunity to include
any matters in the agenda for regular Board meeting, and were also
given sufficient time to review documents and information relating to
matters to be discussed in Board meeting in advance.

Name of Director

Mr. She Siu Kee William RBEFE
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai RBELRE
Mr. Fung Hong Keung ISR T E
Mr. Lam Shing Kai ESES
Mr. Leung Wai Ming RERTE
Mr. Leung Yat Pang R—Me5HE
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HREHEE
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEREEEL
Mr. Chan Chi Yu PR TE
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen X ER S
Ms. Luk Mei Yan PEER I

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.
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Board of Directors (continued)
General Meeting

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, no general
meeting of the Company was held.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board and the
chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit committee
("Audit Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by way of attending seminars relating to their role as a
Director of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. She Siu Kee William, the Chairman of the Company, was also
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board further believes
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The four independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
calibre, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields
of accounting, laws or printing business. With their experience
gained from various sectors, they provide strong support towards the
effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each
independent non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of
his/her independence to the Company, and the Company considers
each of them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of 3 years commencing from 3 December 2013 and are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

Nomination Committee

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience
in the printing business and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 13
November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned
with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (as chairman)
and Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah, and an executive Director namely Mr. She
Siu Kee William.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and
monitor the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer.
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Nomination Committee (continved)

The Board adopted on 13 November 2013 a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated certain duties under the Policy
to the Nomination Committee. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining
the optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the necessity for setting
measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, no meeting
of the Nomination Committee was held.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13
November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned
with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (as chairman), Mr.
Chan Chi Yu and one executive Director, namely Mr. She Siu Kee
William.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy. The model of
Remuneration Committee described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration Committee,
which to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, no meeting
of the Remuneration Committee was held.
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Remuneration Committee (continved)

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme pursuant
to the written resolution passed by the then shareholders on 13
November 2013 to recognise the contribution of certain Directors and
employees of the Group to the growth of the Company. Details of the
Pre-IPO share option scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13 November
2013. The purpose of the share option scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions of the eligible participants to motivate
them and to optimise their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group and to attract or retain or otherwise maintain
on-going business relationships with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group. Details of the share option scheme are set out in the Directors’
Report.

The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under employment contracts or service contracts,
if any, and will be fixed by the Board with recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and the
prevailing marketing conditions. Details of the Directors and senior
management’s emoluments for the period from the Listing Date to
31 March 2014 are set out in Note 8, respectively, to the financial
statements.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 13 November
2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
code provisions under the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Luk Mei Yan (as chairlady), Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah
and Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of
the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget) and the internal control procedures.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company's interim and annual report.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee held 1T meeting.

Name of Director

Ms. Luk Mei Yan FEEB L
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah EEEEL
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen MBS

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee reviewed, among others, the accountant’s report disclosed
in the Prospectus; and the interim results of the Group, which were
in the opinion of the Audit Committee that the preparation of
such accountant’s report and results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing internal control system of
the Group and also noted that review of the same shall be carried out
annually.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out by the
Board pursuant to the code provisions as set out in the CG code.

The corporate governance functions currently performed by the Board
are to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and other legal
or regulatory requirements; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the Board
has developed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended to 31 March 2014, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), is as
follows:

Services rendered IR
— Audit services —Ei R
— Non-audit services —JERET IR

Company Secretary

Mr. Fung Hong Keung (“Mr. Fung”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 3 December 2013. The biographical
details of Mr. Fung are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Fung had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

According to the Articles of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)
Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The relevant address is as follow:

Flat A3, 1st Floor, Phase 3
Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
448-458 Kwun Tong Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the sub-section
headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”
above for putting forward proposals for discussion at general
meetings.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where
the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on
by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the
notice of 2014 AGM will be voted by poll.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other
announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with
the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules;
and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.
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Investor Relations (continved)
Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

On 13 November 2013, the Company has adopted an amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association which had
been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2014.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Internal Control

Management had implemented a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are safeguarded,
proper accounting records are maintained, appropriate legislation
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for management and publication purpose and investment
and business risks affecting the Group are identified and managed.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board has conducted a
review of the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the system. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Board considers that the Company has
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

Based on the results of the review, the Board has concluded that
the Group's overall system of internal control has been effectively
exercised during the year. The Group will continue to improve its
system of internal control. The Board shall conduct such review at
least once annually.
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Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (R#BE), aged 51, is the Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder of the
Group and has participated in the management of the Group since
October 2001.

Mr. She is primarily responsible for the overall management,
development and planning of the Group and has more than 20 years
of experience in the printing industry.

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (fR4H4&), aged 46, is an executive Director and
manager of the corporate management department. He joined the
Group in 2006. Mr. Tsui is primarily responsible for formulating
new business policy and workflow, monitoring the daily operation
of the human resources department and administrative department
and participating in brand building activities of the Group. Mr. Tsui
has over 10 years of experience in the corporate administration and
management.

Mr. Tsui obtained his master of business administration from the
University of Management & Technology in September 2013 through
distance learning and bachelor of arts from Fu Jen Catholic University
in June 1997.

Mr. Fung Hong Keung (B EE3#), aged 51, is an executive Director,
company secretary and chief financial officer. He joined the Group in
2012. He is responsible for the supervision and management of the
Group's financial matters and strategic planning of the Group. He
joined the Group in May 2012.

Mr. Fung has approximately 23 years of experience in the field of
corporate finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
served as chief corporate services officer in £Z& H CFIHERNERA
7] (Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co., Ltd.) (a subsidiary of the
Hong Kong Productivity Council) from October 2011 to March 2012.
Mr. Fung served as a financial controller of Neo-Concept (Holdings)
Co. Ltd. from March 2011 to October 2011. He worked as an account
manager in Hiway Textiles Limited from March 2008 to January 2011.
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Executive Directors (continued)

He has been a member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
January 2013, a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2005 and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since December 2004.

Mr. Fung was awarded the graduate diploma in China marketing and
e-business from the University of Hong Kong School of Professional
and Continuing Education in November 2004 and the degree
of bachelor of arts in accountancy from Bolton Institute of High
Education in October 2003.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shing Kai (#7#&{£), aged 41, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Lam has approximately 20 years of
experience in the printing industry.

Mr. Leung Wai Ming (R 87), aged 42, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. WM Leung has approximately 10
years of experience in the marketing field.

Mr. Leung Yat Pang (— ), aged 49, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. YP Leung has approximately 20
years of experience in the printing industry.

Mr. YP Leung graduated from Huagiao University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1987.
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Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (3= 3#), aged 49, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has approximately 10 years of
experience in the corporate management.

Mr. Chong was awarded a diploma in marketing from the Chartered
Institute of Marketing for fulfilling the requirements of the institute’s
examiners at the diploma examination held in June 1991. He also
obtained a certificate in marketing from Vocational Training Council
in June 1989 and a higher certificate in electronic engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1987.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (BE= %), aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Dr. Lung is an university lecturer. He has been teaching a wide range
of professional subjects in both local and overseas universities and
institutions since 1992. Dr. Lung has extensive experience in company
secretarial, corporate governance, accounting and finance. He served
in VST Holdings Limited (stock code: 856) as the company secretary
from November 2002 to October 2009 and the financial controller
from November 2002 to October 2008. Dr. Lung worked as the
finance manager of Bel Trade International Company Limited from
March 2000 to October 2002 and the accounts manager of Swedish
Trading International Holdings Limited from April 1995 to June 1999.

Dr. Lung was admitted as a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries ("HKICS”) in April 2006 and as a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in April 2006. He has also been admitted as an associate member of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in February 1996 and registered
as a certified tax adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong from
June 2010 to December 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Lung obtained his doctor of philosophy in business administration
from the Tarlac State University in November 2012 through distance
learning and master of business administration from the University
of East Asia (currently known as University of Macau) in February
1988 and diploma in management studies from the Hong Kong
Management Association and the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1985.

Dr. Lung was invited to serve in the Membership Committee of the
HKICS in 2013. He was also invited to represent HKICS to act in the
panel of adjudicators for the Best Annual Report Awards as organised
by the Hong Kong Management Association from 2009 to 2013.

Mr. Chan Chi Yu (FR&#8), aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Mr. Chan is currently a non-executive director of Vanke Property
(Overseas) Limited (formerly known as Winsor Properties Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1036)) and a director of Vanke Real Estate
(Hong Kong) Company Limited. Mr. Chan has been appointed as a
consultant of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code: 000002) since April 2008.

Mr. Chan has been as a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since May 2012, an affiliated member of The Association of
International Accountants since July 1993, and an associate member
and a full member of the Hong Kong Management Association since
October 1981 and April 2012, respectively.

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (Gh3X5%), aged 49, is an independent
non-executive Director of Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Mr. Chi has served as the managing director, ITD China of Federal
Express (Hong Kong) Limited (the holding company of which is listed
in the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: FDX)) from June 2009.

Mr. Chi obtained his Master of Commerce in information systems
from the University of New South Wales in Australia in October 1994,
Master of Science from the University of Salford in United Kingdom
in July 1987 and Bachelor of Science from the University of London in
United Kingdom in August 1985.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Luk Mei Yan (F£3% &), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Ms. Luk has served as a group financial controller of Golden Sun Home
Products Limited since July 2008.

Ms. Luk was certified as an associate of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in July 1998 and admitted as a certified
practicing accountant of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants in March 1998.

Ms. Luk obtained her bachelor of commerce (accounting) from Curtin
University of Technology in August 1996 and associate diploma in
accounting from Adelaide College of TAFE in Australia in May 1993.

Senior Management

Mr. Lee Hon Wai (Z#1&), aged 44, is the production manager of
the Group. Mr. Lee joined the Group in November 2009. Mr. Lee has
approximately 7 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Lee
worked in Norman Graphic Printing Company Limited as the plant
manager from January 2008 to October 2009 and a production senior
officer from May 2006 to December 2007.

Mr. Chan Wai Keung (BR{&38), aged 46, is the sales and marketing
manager of the Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011.
Mr. Chan has approximately 11 years of experience in the printing
industry. Mr. Chan served as a sales manager in Wilson Printing
Equipment Limited from August 2001 to July 2009.

Mr. Cheang Ngai Wang (83 %), aged 50, is the information
technology director of the Group. Mr. Cheang joined the Group in
December 2004. Mr. Cheang acted as the nominee of the Group
for holding 30% interest in E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd., which
was incorporated in Malaysia in December 2007. Mr. Cheang has
approximate 8 years of experience in the printing industry.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENEETEAEZEE :

Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Zhang Yiqing ((R€5E), aged 29, is the information technology
manager of the Group. Ms. Zhang joined the Group in July 2009 and
has been responsible for the co-ordination and development of the
information technology projects. Ms. Zhang has approximately 5 years
of experience in the printing and information technology industry.
Ms. Zhang obtained the degree of master of science in information
technology management (merit) from Hong Kong Baptist University
in November 2009 and the degree of bachelor of science in software
engineering from Beijing Normal University, Zhuhai in July 2008. Ms.
Zhang was awarded the Merit Scholarship in June 2009 from Hong
Kong Baptist University.
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Report of the Directors

ESGHE

The board of directors of the Company is pleased to submit their first
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Reorganisation and Share Offer

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as exempted
company with limited liability on 10 January 2013. Pursuant to a
reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group.

Use of Proceeds From the Company’s Share
Offer

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of 125,000,000 new shares
in connection with its listing on the Stock Exchange, after deduction
of related expenses, amounted to approximately HK$66.5 million,
which are intended to be applied in accordance with the proposed
applications set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 November
2013 (“Prospectus”). During the period between the listing date and
31 March 2014, HK$4.8 million of the net proceeds from the listing
were utilised in accordance with the proposed applications set out
in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus. The unused proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment company and the subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of printing services and solutions
on advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a diversified
customer base in Hong Kong.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 56 to 57.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2014 to be payable to
the shareholders on Thursday, 28 August 2014 to these shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on Tuesday, 19
August 2014.

Annual General Meeting

The 2014 annual general meeting of the Company (2014 AGM") will
be held on Friday, 8 August 2014.
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Report of the Directors
S e
Earges

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 6 August 2014 to
Friday, 8 August 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the
relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company’s transfer
office and share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 5 August 2014.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 August 2014 to Tuesday, 19 August 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanies by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 August 2014.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital for the year
ended 31 March 2014 are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (”Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the period from 3
December 2013 to 31 March 2014.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law") of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$87.0 million, of which HK$20 million dividend has
been proposed for the year. Under the Companies Law, the share
premium account of the Company of approximately HK$80.4 million
as of 31 March 2014 is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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EERHE

Four-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
four financial years is set out on page152.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (appointed on 18 February 2013)
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr. Fung Hong Keung (appointed on 13 November 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shing Kai (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr. Leung Wai Ming (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr. Leung Yat Pang (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (appointed on 13 November 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr. Chan Chi Yu (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Ms. Luk Mei Yan (appointed on 13 November 2013)
In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles, all of the
above Directors will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming 2014 AGM.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors
EEgWE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO™)) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated

corporation

(i) The Company

EEREREBEABNROER

RZF-—WE=ZA=1+—H ARAEFK
EBITHABRARR R REEEEE (E&E
RESEREGI([ESFEBE G ])EXV
BB - ABREIR D REHFPHEABRER 5
KREAEEBIEXVEBET R8N B mMA R A &
BRFHERSOR R (BRRERZ MR K
FUEM R SRESEEOERIORR) - KR
1R7E 5 K BB R 1) 235214 R & R FE & f& Pt
BB - SRE EWAR RIS+ E
MEITAEFETEFRZNEETAD R
Y57 Al 1) 7858 R AR X A Ko B 52X P B9 HE 28 SOR
B

ARARRAEEMABEZERSD - HER
DRESHEZERXR

Name of Director

EEfA

Mr. She Siu Kee William
SRS E

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
HEEEE

Mr. Lam Shing Kai
MAEER &

Mr. Leung Wai Ming
RERLE

Nature of interest

REME

Beneficial owner

EmiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

ZPEHlEE R (HEE)

Beneficial owner

EmiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

SRl A E R (HEE)

Beneficial owner

EmiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

SRl AR ()

Beneficial owner

EmiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

S A B (KTEE)

Long position/

short position

BR KR

Long position
Sy
Long position
HE

Long position
oy
Long position
Sy

Long position
oy
Long position
o)

Long position
oy
Long position
o)

Number of
ordinary shares/
underlying
shares held

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

BEEER S RAXFFRE
M EA AR 17 B B WEDH
17,850,000 3.57%
292,500,000 58.50%
17,850,000 3.57%
292,500,000 58.50%
17,850,000 3.57%
292,500,000 58.50%
17,850,000 3.57%
292,500,000 58.50%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in EERSHREBAENRHS
Shares (continued) (4)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying ZXATREEMAABREERS - HERK
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated HREFHWERZRAE @)
corporation (Continued)

(i) The Company (Continued) (i) AE27(E)

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of
Long position/ underlying shareholding in
Name of Director Nature of interest short position shares held the Company
BREZER - REATFRE
iR HmE "E % HEROGEE KAEDL
Mr. Leung Yat Pang Beneficial owner Long position 11,100,000 2.22%

R—lE5EE EREAA e
Interest of controlled Long position 292,500,000 58.50%

corporation (Note 1) &

EHDEE R ()

Mr. Fung Hong Keung Beneficial owner Long position 2,500,000 0.50%
B BR3 5E ER A A FE (Note 2)
(MH3E2)
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai Beneficial owner Long position 2,500,000 0.50%
AEEE BEREAA "E (Note 2)
(MH3E2)
Notes: B EE

1. These 292,500,000 shares are held by eprint Limited, a company owned 1t292,500,000 f% f& 15 9 Bl BB SR A B %k 4

as to approximately 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52% by (TR5EHE) HaEEATHEE]D - MK
Mr. She Siu Kee William (“Mr. She”), Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (“Mr. Chong”), FERE(MEL]) REBEL([REH
Mr. Lam Shing Kai (“Mr. Lam"), Mr. Leung Wai Ming (“Mr. WM Leung") SEDRR—BEE((R—BEENHEE
and Mr. Leung Yat Pang (“Mr. YP Leung"), respectively. Pursuant to a deed #)21.62% ~ 21.62% ~ 21.62% * 21.62%
of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 and entered into by them confirming 113.52% 2 Beprint Limited FT$E A © 1R
the existence of their acting in concert arrangement, each of Mr. She, EHRMMEIzBHA-T—=ZF+A-H
Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung (collectively, the ZHERRBEEIAFEZ —BTHLTH &
“Concerted Shareholders”) has agreed to jointly control their respective A FEEAE - ML REAXERRIE
interests in the Company. Accordingly, eprint Limited shall be accustomed SEFEBI—BTPRE)ESEREH
to act in accordance with joint instructions of the Concerted Shareholders. BEEHEESERARRMER - At
Hence, each of the Concerted Shareholders is deemed to be interested in all eprint Limited!& R I — BT B R L E4E
the Shares held by eprint Limited by virtue of the SFO. TTE - REFHARPERD - 5378
% B 4718 A R eprint Limited BT A B A A% 19
GRS -
2. These shares are derived from the interest in share options granted to 2. HWEBRMITEBARRR TEBEENER
the relevant Directors by the Company, details of which are set out in the R BRFFEE R T X (B EREE —
section headed “Interests in Share Options” below. EiFI# ©
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in EERSHEEAENREOER
Shares (continued) ()

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying ZXATREEMAABREERS - HER
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated B REFWERZRAE D)
corporation (Continued)

(ii) Associated corporation — eprint Limited (ii) #8EEEE —eprint Limited

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares held

shareholding in
the Associated
Corporation

in the Associated

Name of Director Nature of interest Corporation

BERELE AN L B AR T
EEHR ERME LEREA HEDE
Mr. She Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
R EmEEA
Mr. Chong Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
HAE EmEEA
Mr. Lam Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
M HE EmEEA
Mr. WM Leung Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
RERF A EmEA A
Mr. YP Leung Beneficial owner 1,352 13.52%
2k AE EmiEA A

Note: The disclosed interest represents the interests in eprint Limited, the Misk - BERBEREREE  HEE ML R

FHAEERRE-BEERARARERBKRE
eprint Limited 2 #% S BFELLAID B A
21.62% ~ 21.62% ~ 21.62% ~ 21.62% &
13.52% °

controlling shareholder of the Company, which is owned by Mr. She,
Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung in the respective
proportions of 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52%.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares (Continued)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 March 2014 as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in Share Options
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 13 November 2013, the rules of the Pre-IPO
share option scheme (”Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved
and adopted. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
to recognise the contribution of certain Directors and employees of
the Group to the growth of the Company and/or to the listing of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange by granting options to them as
incentive or reward. Details of the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme were set out in the Prospectus.

An aggregate of 12,500,000 share options at an exercise price
of HK$0.78 each, being the offer price under the Share Offer (as
defined in the Prospectus), were granted on 13 November 2013 to
two executive Directors and certain employees of the Group. These
12,500,000 share options were subsequently cancelled on 9 May
2014 pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board.
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Interests in Share Options (continued) BRAERER e

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAAMRENBRESTS ()

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option 1RE B X AMBERTERET 2% B R
Scheme are as follows: BT -

Outstanding
Granted on Lapsed as at
Name or category 13 November during 31 March Exercise
of participants 2013 the period 2014 price  Exercisable Period

B B RER R=-Z—= MAKY RZE-DOF TEE  TES
t—R+=H =ZA=+—H
& e RATBE
(HK$)
(&)

Directors£%

Mr. Fung Hong Keung 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 0.78 1 April 2014 to
5 58 T A 2 December 2019
—E-NFHA—HBE
—T-NF+-HAZH
1,250,000 - 1,250,000 0.78 3 December 2015 to

2 December 2019
::gj£$+:ﬂ =Bz

—NF+=ZAZH
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 0.78 1 April 2014 to
BREEEE 2 December 2019
—E-MFEPA—HF
“ET-hF+ZAZH
1,250,000 - 1,250,000 0.78 3 December 2015 to

2 December 2019
—E-RFt+-A=ZH=ZE

—E-NF+ZRAZH
Sub-total’/N 5t 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
Employees{E & 3,750,000 - 3,750,000 0.78 1 April 2014 to
2 December 2019
—E-NFNA—HZE
—E-NF+-HAZH
3,750,000 - 3,750,000 0.78 3 December 2015 to
2 December 2019
—E-RF+-_A=H=ZE
“E-AFt-A-H
Total @&t 12,500,000 - 12,500,000
Notes: fisE -
(1) The share options are exercisable in the following manner: (1) PERRIEIE A T AT -
(a) on 1 April 2014, 50% of the share options granted shall become (a) RZZ—NENA—H BHOBRES
exercisable; 50% %A AR 1T
(b)  on the second anniversary date of the Listing Date, being 3 December 2015, (b) E"LFE BENE _EBFB (=T —h%F
50% of the share options granted shall become exercisable; and +ZA=R) &H E’J%HQ%E’]SO%H%}E}Z?%
Efﬁfﬁ P &
() all the options granted that are not exercisable prior to the sixth anniversary (0 RETBHMEANERAFA(BIZZ—NF
date of the Listing Date, being 3 December 2019, shall lapse and be deemed +ZA=H)zAifBECHtEE rﬁf&fﬂia’]
as cancelled and void. BERAE - R R R s R B o

(2)  These 12,500,000 share options were cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuantto a  (2) #%%512,500,0000 R EE R _ZE—MFRAANLE
resolution passed by the Board. REREESRBN —TERERTH -
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the "Scheme”)
on 13 November 2013 pursuant to the written resolutions of the
shareholders passed on 13 November 2013. The Scheme is a share
incentive scheme and was established to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions of the Eligible Participants (as defined in the
Prospectus) have had or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe new Shares in aggregate not exceeding 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1

The limit on the total number of shares of the Company
("Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other scheme(s) of any member of the Group must
not exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Listing Date (which shall be
50,000,000 Shares) unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained, and which must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 50,000,000 Shares, which
represents 10% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) granted to any Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued
Shares as at the date of grant.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options to be
granted under the Scheme will be a price determined by the
Board at the time of grant of the options, and will be not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each Participant who accepts the grant of any options, which
must not be more than 10 years from the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option.
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Share Optlon Scheme (Continued)

(5) HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who accepts the grant
of an option in accordance with the terms of the Scheme on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

(6) The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the Listing Date, i.e. 3 December 2013.

Other details of the Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option under the “Scheme” has been granted by the
Company since its adoption and up to the date of this report.

Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares

As at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company

BRETE 2
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eprint Limited (Note 1)
eprint Limited (Mf5E1)

Ms. Lo Suet Yee (Note 2)
ESR Lt (Mi2)

Ms. Yip Fei (Note 3)
BER 2+ (HFE3)

Ms. Yu Siu Ping (Note 4)
ALt (fisE4)

Ms. Chau Fung Kiu (Note 5)
BB B4+ (H5E5)

Nature of interest

REEME

Beneficial owner

BEnBEEA

Interest of spouse

[y

Interest of spouse

Aot

Interest of spouse

Aot as

Interest of spouse

Aot as

Long position/
short position

SRRB

Long position
HR

Long position
HR

Long position
Loy}

Long position
Loy}

Long position
HR

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of
underlying shareholding in
shares held the Company
BREEER RARQBEFRE
HERGEE KAEDL
292,500,000 58.50%
310,350,000 62.07%
310,350,000 62.07%
310,350,000 62.07%
310,350,000 62.07%
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares (continued)

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:
1. eprint Limited is directly interested in approximately 58.5% in the Company.

2. Ms. Lo Suet Yee is the spouse of Mr. She. Under the SFO, Ms. Lo Suet Yee is taken
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. She is interested.

3. Ms. Yip Fei is the spouse of Mr. Chong. Under the SFO, Ms. Yip Fei is taken to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chong is interested.

4. Ms. Yu Siu Ping is the spouse of Mr. Lam. Under the SFO, Ms. Yu Siu Ping is taken
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Lam is interested.

5. Ms. Chau Fung Kiu is the spouse of Mr. WM Leung. Under the SFO, Ms. Chau Fung
Kiu is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. WM Leung
is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’
Debentures

Rights to Acquire Shares or

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
dated 13 November 2013 with the Company for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from 3 December 2013 (i.e. the Listing
Date). Each of the executive Directors may receive a discretionary
bonus, the amount of which will be determined by reference to the
comments of the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Director has signed a letter of appointment dated 13 November 2013
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Connected Transactions

The Group have had entered into a number of transactions with
parties who, upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, became connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of such transactions are set out in the section
headed “Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Connected Persons

1. CTP Limited (“CTP")
CTP is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to 25% by Mr. She,
25% by Mr. Chong, 25% by Mr. Lam and 25% by Mr. WM
Leung, respectively.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Connected Persons (Continued)

2. Promise Properties Limited (R EGR 2 7)) (“Promise
Properties”)
Promise Properties is principally engaged in the business
of property investment, and is beneficially owned as to
approximately 21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong,
21.62% by Mr. Lam, 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung, 10.81% by Ms.
Chau Fung Kiu, the wife of Mr. WM Leung and 10.81% by an
Independent Third Party.

3.  VVV Limited ("VVV")
VVV is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately
21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong, 21.62% by Mr.
Lam, 21.62% by Mr. WM Leung and 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung,
respectively.

4. Profit More Rich Limited (B2 E Z &R 2 7) (“Profit More”)
Profit More is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately 100%
by CTP.

5. King Profit International Limited (ZF| &R 2 7) (“King
Profit”)
King Profit is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately 70%
by VVV and 30% by Mr. Yip Chi Man.

6. Wilson Printing Equipment Limited (B {SEIRIREER 2 T)
(“Wilson Printing”)
Wilson Printing is principally engaged in the business of trading
of printing equipment and printing materials, and is beneficially
owned as to 100% by Mr. Lam Shing Tai, the brother of Mr.
Lam, one of the Controlling Shareholders and non-executive
Directors.

7. Wilson (Hong Kong) Limited (B2 (&#&)BR A7) (“Wilson
HK")
Wilson HK is principally engaged in the business of trading of
printing machineries and spare parts, and is beneficially owned
as to 65% by Mr. Lam Shing Tai, the brother of Mr. Lam, one of
the Controlling Shareholders and non-executive Directors.

Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung are
the Directors and Controlling Shareholders. The above companies are
associates of Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr.
YP Leung, and hence they are considered as connected persons of the
Group under Rule 14A.11 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

The following connected transactions constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Tenancy agreements

Background

(a)

Tenancy agreements relating to CTP

Sixteen tenancy agreements signed in July 2013 were
entered into between CTP, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer
and Invoice Limited, as tenants, under which CTP agreed
to lease a number of properties located in Kwun Tong
Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer and Invoice Limited,
with a total saleable area of approximately 23,000 square
feet, for a term of 33 months ending on 31 March 2016
for use as offices, workshops, stores and car parks. The
monthly rental payable to CTP for the period from April
2013 to June 2013 is approximately HK$371,000 and for
the period from July 2013 to 31 March 2014 under the
above mentioned tenancy agreements is approximately
HK$371,000. The monthly rentals payable to CTP for the
year ending 31 March 2015 and 2016 are approximately
HK$390,000 and HK$410,000 respectively. The aggregate
rentals paid to CTP for the year ended 31 March 2014
is approximately HK$4,452,000. The aggregate rentals
payable to CTP for the year ending 31 March 2015 and
2016 are approximately HK$4,680,000 and HK$4,925,000
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management
fees and other utilities outgoings which are payable by the
relevant tenant).
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Tenancy agreements (Continued)

Background (Continued)

(b)

Tenancy agreements relating to Promise Properties

Five tenancy agreements signed in July 2013 were
entered into between Promise Properties, as landlord,
and Lucky Gainer and Invoice Limited, as tenants, under
which Promise Properties agreed to lease a number of
properties located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to
Lucky Gainer and Invoice Limited with a total saleable
area of approximately 8,300 square feet, for a term of 33
months ending on 31 March 2016 for use as workshops.
The monthly rental payable to Promise Properties for the
period from April 2013 to June 2013 is approximately
HK$113,000 and for the period from July 2013 to
31 March 2014 under the above mentioned tenancy
agreements is approximately HK$113,000. The monthly
rentals payable to Promise Properties for the year ending
31 March 2015 and 2016 are approximately HK$119,000
and HK$125,000 respectively. The aggregate rentals paid
to Promise Properties for the year ended 31 March 2014
is approximately HK$1,358,000. The aggregate rentals
payable to Promise Properties for the year ending 31 March
2015 and 2016 are approximately HK$1,428,000 and
HK$1,502,000 respectively (exclusive of government rent,
management fees and other utilities outgoings which are
payable by the relevant tenant).
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Connected Transactions (continued) BERXS @

Continuing connected transactions (Continued) FEBAER S (#)

1. Tenancy agreements (Continued) 1. HEWHRB)
Background (Continued) AR ()
(¢)  Tenancy agreements relating to VVV (o) BEBEVVWHHEWZ

Six tenancy agreements signed in July 2013 were entered
into between VVV, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer, as
tenant, under which VVV agreed to lease a number of
properties located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to
Lucky Gainer for use as workshops and a car park and
one property in Chai Wan to Promise Network for use
as a store, with a total saleable area of approximately
12,000 square feet, for a term of 33 months ending on
31 March 2016. The monthly rental payable to VVV for
the period from April 2013 to June 2013 is approximately
HK$159,000 and for the period from July 2013 to
31 March 2014 under the above mentioned tenancy
agreements is approximately HK$174,000. The monthly
rentals payable to VVV for the year ending 31 March 2015
and 2016 are approximately HK$182,000 and HK$193,000
respectively. The aggregate rentals paid to VVV for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is approximately HK$2,046,000. The
aggregate rentals payable to VVV for the year ending 31
March 2015 and 2016 are approximately HK$2,190,000
and HK$2,321,000 respectively (exclusive of government
rent, management fees and other utilities outgoings which
are payable by the relevant tenant).
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Tenancy agreements (Continued)

Background (Continued)

(d)

Tenancy agreement relating to Profit More

A tenancy agreement signed in July 2013 was entered
into between Profit More, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer,
as tenant, under which Profit More agreed to lease a
property located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky
Gainer with a total saleable area of approximately 2,900
square feet, for a term of 33 months ending on 31 March
2016 for use as a workshop. The monthly rental payable
to Profit More for the period from April 2013 to June
2013 is approximately HK$41,000 and for the period from
July 2013 to 31 March 2014 under the above mentioned
tenancy agreements is approximately HK$41,000. The
monthly rentals payable to Profit More for the year ending
31 March 2015 and 2016 are approximately HK$43,000
and HK$45,000 respectively. The aggregate rentals paid
to Profit More for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
approximately HK$492,000. The aggregate rentals payable
to Profit More for the year ending 31 March 2015 and
2016 are approximately HK$517,000 and HK$544,000
respectively (exclusive of government rent, management
fees and other utilities outgoings which are payable by the
relevant tenant).
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Tenancy agreements (Continued)

Background (Continued)

(e)

Tenancy agreement relating to King Profit

A tenancy agreement signed in July 2013 was entered
into between King Profit, as landlord, and Invoice Limited,
as tenant, under which King Profit agreed to lease a
property and a car park located in Kwun Tong Industrial
Centre to Invoice Limited with a total saleable area of
approximately 1,800 square feet, for a term of 33 months
ending on 31 March 2016 for use as a workshop and car
park. The monthly rental payable to King Profit for the
period from April 2013 to June 2013 is approximately
HK$26,000 and for the period from July 2013 to 31 March
2014 under the above mentioned tenancy agreements is
approximately HK$26,000. The monthly rentals payable to
King Profit for the year ending 31 March 2015 and 2016
are approximately HK$28,000 and HK$29,000 respectively.
The aggregate rentals paid to King Profit for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is approximately HK$322,000.
The aggregate rentals payable to King Profit for the year
ending 31 March 2015 and 2016 are approximately
HK$338,000 and HK$358,000 respectively (exclusive of
government rent, management fees and other utilities
outgoings which are payable by the relevant tenant),

(collectively, the "Tenancy Agreements”).

The annual caps for the leases under the Tenancy
Agreements, for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
approximately HK$8,670,000. The actual rental paid under
the Tenancy Agreements for the year ended 31 March
2014 is HK$6,598,325.
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

2.

Master Supply Agreement
Background

On or about 27 September 2013, Wilson Printing and Wilson
HK, all of which are controlled by Mr. Lam Shing Tai, the
brother of Mr. Lam, and the Company entered into a master
supply agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) for a term
of three years ending on 31 March 2016, pursuant to which
Wilson Printing and Wilson HK agreed to supply raw materials
which mainly include ink products, zinc printing plates, printing
solutions, consumables of printing machines and spare parts
and provide maintenance services in respect of the printing
machines to the Group. The purchase price payable by the Group
to Wilson Printing and Wilson HK will be agreed following arm’s
length negotiations between the relevant parties with reference
to the prevailing market price of the similar products and
services in Hong Kong.

The annual cap amounts of the fees to be paid by the Group
for the provision of ink products, zinc printing plates, printing
solutions, consumables of printing machines, spare parts and
maintenance services under the Master Supply Agreement for
the year ended 31 March 2014 is approximately HK$26,800,000.
The actual fees paid/payable by the Group under the Master
Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
HK$26,269,551.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

1.

in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business;

on normal commercial terms or on terms that are fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned; and

have been carried out in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions.
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Report of the Directors
S e
Earges

Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in the paragraphs above in accordance with paragraph 14A.38
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Other than the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
the related party transactions disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements are either exempted connected continuing
transactions or non-exempt continuing connected transactions which
are in compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the percentage of sales attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group is 0.6% and
2.3% respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 28.4% and 54.3% of the
total purchases of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliersor customers noted
above.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules
since the listing of its Shares on the Stock Exchange on 3 December
2013.
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Report of the Directors
EEgHRE

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 13 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely, Ms.
Luk Mei Yan (chairlady), Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah and Mr. Chi Man Shing
Stephen. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 16 to 26 of the 2014 Annual Report.

Auditor

The term of appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC") as
auditor of the Company shall retire at the conclusion of the 2014
AGM, a resolution will be submitted to the 2014 AGM to re-appoint
PwC as auditor of the Company.
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On behalf of the Board AEEDMm
eprint Group Limited eprintEEER QT
She Siu Kee, William REE
Chairman *TE
Hong Kong, 20 June 2014 BB ZE—HWFASAZTH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R S CTE

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EPRINT GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of eprint
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 151, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

B Rk ki

H eprintEEERAFRKRE
(REEHEFMA LA BRLE])

TAzZBEM(ATEE [HM]D) EBTIEHRE
562151 BeprintE B AR AR (A TEH &
AEINREMNBAR(GEEEE])HEHF
HBERE - WAHTBEREREER-_Z—HT
F=ZRA=+—HME R R K R
HEZALFENEAGHEARSER - A 0HE
TEHRMEAHRERER URETES;
BERBEREMW TEZER -

%%%éﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%

ERRMEZABERBEE B ASRM
BB BRE LY RFB (AR B3
%ﬁﬁﬁ%Aﬁ%%ﬁ%’u— o B 75
RIFEHEBEMAFHRER  REEERRR
AT MR BEORNEIES - UAES
OF B 75 S R 17 72 e 70 BRAF S B8 AR T G 2
BEAHRBRAL -

BB S E

BFMEEEREBERMANESFEZEA M
BRRELER  WERBEBRERS K
S Z AR EREEAM B K - AT EHA
HENAREEMEAMALE ESREEM
Bff-

HMCRETESAMASHRMNEBEN
FAPETTE - RFERNERBMETER
Mg WHIIMBITERGS  ASEREASH
MERRRE T FEEAERERBRAL -

54 eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2013/14



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RS

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive.lncome

BotEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-_ZT—WNF=A=1+—HILFE

R ———

2014 2013
—E—mEF —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET

Revenue g 6 304,562 284,498
Cost of sales HEXA 7 (190,012) (181,583)
Gross profit EX 114,550 102,915
Other income Hapg A 6 6,165 6,238
Other losses — net HAbsE — F5 6 (1,122) (1,198)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAY 7 (17,553) (15,821)
Administrative expenses TR 7 (75,136) (41,583)
Operating profit EE R 26,904 50,551
Finance income mE A 1,147 976
Finance costs BhE A (1,894) (1,724)
Finance costs — net BhE AN — FEE 9 (747) (748)
Share of profits of joint ventures JELEERERT 11 1,776 1,022
Profit before income tax BR T B AT F 27,933 50,825
Income tax expense FrisfiM > 12 (6,535) (8,207)
Profit for the year FEREF 21,398 42,618
Other comprehensive income: HitfR e W ¢
Item that may be subsequently Rt E D E B

reclassified to profit or loss: KAJIER -
Currency translation differences M AR (182) (5)
Total comprehensive income FRESWEHAEE

for the year 21,216 42,613
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BftFEE I ER

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZZ—NF=A=1+—RALFE

2014 AONIE]
—E-mF —ZT—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt ek TER FAT
Profit for the year attributable to: UTEEEEFERER :
Equity holders of the Company RARESFEAA 21,577 42,438
Non-controlling interests SRR HE (179) 180
21,398 42,618
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (expressed in HK cents per share) EARREIRABEWE) 13 5.19 11.32
Diluted (expressed in HK cents per share)  #5& (3Z FRENET) 13 5.19 N/A
3 A
Total comprehensive income UTEEEERERE
attributable to: HEE
Equity holders of the Company VIN/NEIL ERE S Y =N 21,395 42,433
Non-controlling interests SRR = (179) 180
21,216 42,613
Dividends B 29 34,999 38,704

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form an integral part of these $#66ZE 1518/ FEKAHTERERTAT D
consolidated financial statements. N —# -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
é%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%%% ~ TS

As at 31 March 2014
RZT—NF=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —TE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET TFET
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MERE 14 103,414 101,974
Investments in joint ventures EEBDENKEE 11 2,922 1,235
Deposits and prepayments e MIBAFIB 18 3,164 2,261
109,500 105,470
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 3,123 3,736
Trade receivables B 5 FIE 17 2,379 1,803
Deposits, prepayments and Re  ENRIEREM
other receivables FEUR FRIB 18 2,466 9,565
Current income tax recoverable = AR RO FTEHT 1,158 -
Amounts due from related companies JfE Uk BB N B FR0E 33 479 296
Bank deposit RITHER 19 18,004 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeNES%EER 20 115,961 71,086
143,570 86,486
Total assets EEHATE 253,070 191,956
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to RATERTEAEMN
the equity holders of the Company BEXREE
Share capital f& 7 22 5,000 1
Share premium SR = 80,357 -
Other reserves H b 24 57,412 69,720
Proposed final dividend EERHIR A 24 & 29 20,000 -
162,769 69,721
Non-controlling interests JEPERLRE S 2,025 2,204
Total equity XA 164,794 71,925
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBIRK

As at 31 March 2014
RZE—NF=A=+—H

2014 2013
—2-mnmF —F=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FERBERS
Borrowings == 26 - 16,217
Obligations under finance leases MEHEBETEE 27 14,694 18,564
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFETHAaE 28 10,496 9,380
25,190 44,161
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B DR KIE 25 24,920 24,531
Accruals and other payables JE 5T KT8 f2 E R A 308 25 16,284 14,474
Amounts due to directors FENEERIE 33 350 -
Borrowings == 26 9,681 21,013
Obligations under finance leases MEMEEETET 27 11,620 13,415
Current income tax payable FERTENERFT S HR 231 2,437
63,086 75,870
Total liabilities EEBAE 88,276 120,031
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEERE 253,070 191,956
Net current assets REEEFE 80,484 10,616
Total assets less current liabilities BEASERRBAR 189,984 116,086

FES6E1S1BEMMBEHUBREREN T —N
FRA-tTHESEEeHE THTINES
REEZE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 151 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2014 and were signed
on its behalf

Mr. She Siu Kee William Mr. Fung Hong Keung

REBEEE BEEEE
Director Director
= =

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

F66E151 AMMEERAHYBHRER A D

Eey—ao -
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Statement of Financial Position B —

B ISR MR

As at 31 March 2014
RZT—NF=A=+—H

R ———

2014 2013
—E—UFE —_F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEBAERIRE 10 73,897 -
Prepayments TE FIE 18 126 -
74,023 -
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE I K&
H {th UK IR 18 87 4,240
Amount due from the ultimate JE B 42 P AR X RIFKIE
holding company 33 - 1
Amount due from a subsidiary L IENGIE S 33 19,519 -
Amount due from fellow subsidiaries JE LT [R) 22 B 88 1 R KT8 33 73,331 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEAEE 20 1,314 -
94,251 4,241
Total assets EEHATE 168,274 4,241
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to EAFEREEA
the equity holders of the Company BhRERRFE
Share capital fi% s 22 5,000 1
Share premium IR 15 (B 80,357 -
Other reserves H b 24 61,879 (1,321)
Proposed final dividend EEoRHIR A 24 & 29 20,000 -
Total equity R 167,236 (1,320)

60 eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2013/14



Statement of Financial Position

FATSIR L SR

As at 31 March 2014
RZE—NF=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—UE —_E—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET TET
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals ezt IE 25 470 46
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTH B R EIRIA 33 - 5,515
Current income tax payable FERTRNERFR 1S HR 218 -
Amounts due to directors JEfE S5 350 -
Total liabilities EE8E 1,038 5,561
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEERH 168,274 4,241
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (BE)FHE 93,213 (1,320)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERAHERE 167,236 (1,320)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 151 were #56E 151 BfEAHUEHREDA =S —N
approved by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2014 and were signed F/ XA -+ HEZSSHE YA TIES

on its behalf REFEE
Mr. She Siu Kee William Mr. Fung Hong Keung
RBERLE BERELE
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form an integral part of these 66X 151HRIMFERBKA HHBHRENATH
consolidated financial statements. ) —F 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B ERBER T

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-_ZT—WNF=A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KAARBRAARE
Share-hased Non-
Share IF Capital compensation ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve gamnings  Sub-total interests equity
B&  REGRE B4R ROEEERE  AERE  RERW Nt FBREE  EEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000
T ThL Tén T T Tén Térn Tén Tén

Balance at 1 April 2013 W-E-=ERA-RER 1 - 6,993 - 31 62,690 69,721 2204 11,925
Comprehensive income folE
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 151 157 (179) 21,39

Other comprehensive income £ 4
Currency translation differences  EX 28 - - - - (182) - (182) - (182)

Total comprehensive income ~ ERE4ANEES
for the year - - - - (182) 151 21,395 (179) 116

Total contributions byand ~ BERERRN
distributions to owners BRTREAER

of the Company recognised &R ATF4%E
directly in equity

Issue of shares 3l 1,50 96,250 - - - - 97,500 - 97,500
Share-based payments Note 23 B3R IER (3E23) - - - 1,69 - - 1,69 - 1,696
Shares capitalsation issue RivERfEA(HH2)

(Note 22) 3,749 (3,749) - - - - - - -
Professional expenses incurred AR F L AFELHEERS

in connection with the

Company's Listing - (12,144) - - - - (12,144) - (12,144)
Deemed contribution from equity B AERSEAREAKTE

holders upon Reorganisation - - (400) - - - (400) - (400)
Dividends (Note 29) & (H39) - - - - - (14,999) (14,999) = (14,999)
Total contributions byand ~ AATHE AR

distributions to owners TERARAE

of the Company 4,999 80,357 (400) 1,69 - (14,999) 71,653 - 71,653
Balance at 31 March 2014 W-E-BEZR=T-REH 5,000 80,357 6,593 1,69 (145) 69,268 162,769 2,05 164,794
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR EBHE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZZ—NF=A=1+—RALFE

ity holders of the Company
S5 H AL

Share Capital Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserves reserve eamings Sub-total interests equity

BE  ARHE  AEEE  REEW

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AL TR BT AL B BT TAL

Balance at 1 April 2012 RZB-“5MA-R&H - 6,993 Q 58,012 65,047 2,968 68,015
Comprehensive income RabE
Profit for the year EREF - - - 42,438 42,438 180 42,618

Other comprehensive income ~ EftA ki
Currency translation differences 38 - - (5) - () - (5)

Total comprehensive income ERGANREE
for the year - - (5) 42,438 42,433 180 42,613

Total contributions by and ERREREIN
distributions to owners RARKEAEL
of the Company recognised TERI AR
directly in equity

Issue of shares B I - -

Dividends (Note 29) T8 (HE29) - -

1 - 1
(944) (38,704)

1
(o)
=
~—
=N
= 1
<
=
~—
=N
=

Total contributions by and KATREAEE

distributions to owners TERDRAE
of the Company 1 - - (37,760) (37,759) (944) (38,703)
Balance at 31 March 2013 R-2-ZEZA=t-R&H 1 6,993 37 62,690 69,721 2,204 71,925

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form an integral part of these $66=151 B FEX A FHIHERRTATD
consolidated financial statements. I —En o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows -
éﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%% TR

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_TNME=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E2-lmF —F=%F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i TR TAET

Cash flows from operating activities & ETFELBRLRE

Cash generated from operations BIBEBESAMNIRS 30 60,556 60,980
Interest paid EFE (1,894) (1,724)
Income tax paid BATATSH (8,783) (12,920)
Net cash generated from KETEBEENIRES TR

operating activities 49,879 46,336

Cash flows from investing activities REZHELEESRE

Interest received EHE 1,147 976
Purchase of property, BEME  BENEE

plant and equipment (6,452) (13,163)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’iﬁf%¥ = &

plant and equipment RIBE P FRIA 30 2 3,130
Repayment of advances to related EEBRTHERA]

companies = 5,000
(Advances to)/repayment of advances (BZF) MEERR

to related companies TRAEQR] (183) 47,835
Increase in bank deposit RITIFFRIE NN 19 (18,004) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEB(FE),

investing activities EERSFE (23,490) 43,778

Cash flows from financing activities FEEHELRERE

Proceeds from borrowings BEEEHIE 9,681 20,000
Repayments of borrowings EREE (37,230) (10,450)
Repayments of obligations under EENRMELEE

finance leases 1H T HFIE (10,441) (12,324)
Repayments of advances from BRI

shareholders (400) (303)
Advances from non-controlling interests  3FIZEAZIEZR BARR - 414
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PTEEIE 97,500 1
Professional expenses paid in connection  FLAAE] F

with the Company’s Listing M fEBEEE R (25,530) (1,379
Dividends paid ERRE (14,999) (38,704)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mhESEBEL (FFA)

financing activities REFE 18,581 (42,745)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZZ—NF=A=1+—RALFE

2014 2013
—E-IF —EB—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net increase in cash and HeRRESEEEHR
cash equivalents HEINFEE 44,970 47,369
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERRESEEER
beginning of year 71,086 23,717
Effect of change in exchange rates EREFHNTE (95) -
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRREEEER
end of year 20 115,961 71,086

Non-cash transaction

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of machinery with a total
capital amount at the inception of the lease of HK$4,776,000 for the year ended 31 March
2014 (2013: HK$17,941,000).

The notes on pages 66 to 151 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FRERS

BE-_Z—NE=ZA=1+—ALFE  NREERKETT
MEME LR - FIEMAFT M E KRB R4,776,000%8
FTE(ZE—=%:17,941,00087T) °

F6E 151 BAMMFENRE HYBRETA S
N —2p 5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOtT BRI EE

1 General information, group reorganisation 1 —fB&Ek  SEEEAHARZ75
and basis of presentation H*E
1.1 General information 1.1 —REHR
eprint Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated eprint S B BR AR ([ARAFA])
in the Cayman Islands on 10 January 2013 as an exempted RZE—=F—A+HBRERES
company with limited liability under the Companies Law BERRE(KE ) RHAERS
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s address AR AIBREABR AR o &K
of its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 72 A) & i #% & Hb Uk A 4th Floor,
South Church Street, George Town, PO Box 10240, Grand Harbour Place, 103 South Church
Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman Islands. Street, George Town, PO Box
10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands °
The Company is an investment holding company. The KRB B —EREZERAT - XA
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally ANENBAR([AEH])TE
engaged in the provision of printing services and solutions REE M Z Tt IR R AR
on advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a BRBRES BRBEE R XARMH
diversified customer base in Hong Kong (the “Business”). R AER([ER]) -
The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of AKABBRNDER_ZE—=F+_A
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock —HRBAEBAERIHERAF
Exchange”) on 3 December 2013 (the “Listing”). (BT DEREMT L) ©
The consolidated financial statements are presented in B AN - BB HRERE
thousand of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise FTHALER - ZEUBEHRERAES
stated. These financial statements have been approved for R _E—NFNAZTHILER
issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2014. 5 o
1.2 Group reorganisation and basis of presentation 1.2 EEEAREHEE
In preparation for the Listing, the Company and other BEW ET o ADF RIBARKK
companies now comprising the Group have undergone a SECcHEHMAREETEMA(NE
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) pursuant to which A1) BHARREEKAENEER
the Company has become the holding company of the ) /N I
Group.
Prior to the Reorganisation, the Business was carried out REHER - EBARARFNERTR
by the subsidiaries of the Company which were collectively T ZELNRIBRRBELLE -
controlled by Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Chong Cheuk SEEIHE A MUREL L - REHR
Ki, Mr. Lam Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming, and Mr. Leung A RR RS E (G [
Yat Pang (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”). ) HERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O EIRRM

1 General information, group reorganisation
and basis of presentation (continued)

1.2 Group reorganisation and basis of presentation
(Continued)

The Company and intermediate holding entities have
not been involved in any other business prior to the
Reorgainsation and do not meet the definition of a
business. The Reorganisation involves no change in
management and the ultimate owners of the Business
remain the same. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company are prepared in accordance
with HKAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), using the carrying
values of the Business for all years presented, or since the
respective dates of incorporation/establishment of the
subsidiaries, or since the date when the subsidiaries first
came under the control of the Controlling Shareholders,
whichever is earlier.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of eprint Group
Limited have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™"). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2

—RER - EEEARE

3
S=(4#&)

1.2 EEEARENEE#)

ARR AN ERERREMARN L
RS BEITMEMELERTTFE X
BER - BHIKRERERE LR
EREE  EBREEBAEST
o FHt - KRR Z A HMBREK
TREBEEEGHMAG([FEES
R DFBEMONESETENS
27RAHRBLMBEHRER - KA
FrB25IFEHE B AR T
DAV @ AVASE =k ) EPNCIE
NE—BITHIRRZEHE B A
RRERE)ZEHZREERE

TESTHRAE

mAEZEAHMBBRREMEANER
SRTBRERN T - BB BHAI - Ui
ERRNFABERINMEFEERE
==

2.1 REEE

eprintSS BB R AR KA (B 53R
®IBEESEEAMAS([HEE
SRR E )R 2 BB S %
([ BEEMBREED]DHEH -
SO MR EREBRE L KAER
& o

RRFBY IR E R R BRI 75
BRBERETERGF G - 0
EREEBREAAEESHE
R R HIE - 0% o= 2 HI T skAE R
B - SRR R fhEE A G
BHmEKRM = BERNE D RH T4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHBEERE»)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEH)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 21N B BEREERFEEEE
(a)  Amended standards and interpretation adopted (a) HKNEEFRNEJANSETE
by the Group I ]2 72 7
The following amendments to standards are THERBIEFT AR =
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on T —=—FP] A —Hisk
or after 1 April 2013 and are applicable to the 2Bz et HEm s &
Group: M EARAER
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee benefits
BEGHENFEI19R(ZT——FLIE5]) EE®H
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate financial statements
BEGHERE27TR(ZT——FLIE35]) VAR e
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investment in associates and joint ventures
ARG ERE 28R (ZT——F&1E5]) BENaREERERE
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
BBMBmEEREI105% EXGTIE e
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements
BB BmEERE115R Ch-er
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities
BBMBmEERE125% BENEMEREO RS
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement
BBMBmEERE135 ARBEFE
HKAS 1 (Revised) (Amendment) Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income
BEGERZE 1R (EIEET) (1BET) Hittir & WmIHE MET
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities
BBMBmEERETR(BET) SRITHE: FE-—cREERSHARENLYH
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and Consolidated financial statements, Joint
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) arrangements and Disclosure of interest in
other entities: transition guidance
BEBMBmEEREI105 - BAMK SR mE a8 RBEENEMERL
WMEERIE 1R REBHEREER #ens - BEES
1298 (1&5])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but not effective for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2013 and have not been early adopted

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

BHBUBREENER SRIA

HKIFRIC 21 Levies

BB (BRMBREAE HE
ZE®)-REENT

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) (Amendment)  Employee benefits

AR RS I0R(-E—4
IR (B5T)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

&=

N

TRETHERBRE @

2.1 REEE )
QAN B BEREHRBBESTES)

(b)

Financial instruments: Presentation - Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities

AR ERE2R(E])
HKAS 36 (Amendment)

AR ERE36H (BF])
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

TRIA: 2)-eREERSRABEN
Impairment of assets: Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

BERE  FeRmEENTRESBRE

Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement

EEMBER-E—=4%F
P9 A — A Lz # FiE
BT B AR XL T
7K 52 [F] 30 #E B R AN Y
%ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬂi//%ﬁﬁﬁ HEAIR
15T

Effective for annual
period beginning
on or after
RUTA#E 2%
MM EERBENR

1 January 2015
F— R
1 January 20
—E-mE—

1July 2014
—T-mFELH-H

1 January 2014

—mE-A—AH
1 January 2014

—mE-A—AH
1 January 2014

- Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge

accounting
AR ERE395 () ﬁ@%&&%ﬁ&%i—ﬁilﬂ%%%&ﬁ#@ﬁ —mFE—-A—H
JARYRERE
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment entities 1 January 2014
(Revised 2011) (Amendment)
ERMBREERNE0% BEYE  REBBR “T-mE—-H—H
ERAENRRBEGTER
E27H(ZT——FLIEET) (185T)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendment)
BRNBREERBTRREAM L
EERBEF(ERT)

The Group has not early adopted these new
standards and amendments to the existing
standards in the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014. The Group plans
to apply the above standards and amendments
when they become effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group and it is not yet
in a position to state whether any substantial
changes to Group's significant accounting
policies and presentation of the financial
information will result.

Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures

BHEMPRRBEERE

1 January 2015

%Zi_’z EE A
=+—HILFE  K&E
B S B s Rk P iR
FERNZE AT ERI K

BBEAERTA - K
SEEENEEUEE

P Lt E R R AERT A o

AEBECRBFEES
AEBEZBERYE B
B AT AR BEHEE AN E
ZEXIBEFHENUB
Bz 2B AeEHR
It A AR B RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

2

FESHBEERE o)

2.2

G

(a)

ML E
MEBAREASENEEE
ﬂ%m*m(@% EBIEE
Kﬁlﬂﬁ%?i?
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm Bzr#
(2] 3z £ [ i%ﬂ I BEE

BEEZEBNENIZEX
ZEH - IAEEEHZER
BEESE WBARMRE
FIEESEEAEG ZHEL2E
BHAR - ESIEKRILEZB
EIEEOARR -

A& BB LS EKE
BARR - BBE—FHMBAF
FresiEm (& - RFTEEE
E - HEWEFTOIFEA
FMEEMBERANEBERET
R RSN AREE - AT
EZENHERENALHESR
ﬁ%i%&ﬁﬁ%ié%%
DREE - REFELSR
BEANRNEE MATAE
MNEELRSIABE 915K
RKEBEHB AR EBEE -
$ElhﬁEW%§ © A
AR EERIRIFERERT
s F AT &R & EFAE
B RS 58 A L DI R R 1A 1
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WA BB INE R R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2

TESTRRBEw

2.2 a6t

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBLT(#)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred REBPAEZENTAKAR
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the BERKEE B AR EBER
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the R WRIE-—REEXEE
fair value of the contingent consideration that is M AREQI R BENER
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in 28 - BRIBEEE LR
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss F395 - NIBEERLER
or as a change to other comprehensive income. BEMEGEREES - WD
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity HARGNIANREHES
is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is istE  MEBREERER
accounted for within equity. AR ©
The excess of the consideration transferred, the FREERE  REWRER
amount of any non-controlling interest in the ZIEMEZEREZSER
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any F{] g A W B 77 2 IR R
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the BEaRWBREHZAREE
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is MmN ER RN EEFE
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration ZAREBE EEHEUpE
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and FIER - INEZBEBAMNBR
previously held interest measured is less than the T - FTEERE - BRIk
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired VRS R 2 R ST B PR R R AT
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is 22 BTERPTWENRE A
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of RIEEFE2AREEB  H
comprehensive income. EHEEES M RalER

R o

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised SEHARFIZENRZS - #
gains on transactions between group companies are BEAREBERR ZHWaE T IAH
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. 5o RBIREEBINTUY
When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries HeowMABTE  WEARR
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's EZSBEEHARUKGE
accounting policies. REE R -

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (b) FTEFHAEEHENKEL
without change of control TS
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do 75 [ R B B IE 4% I 1 R mR
not result in loss of control are accounted for as T - PEBRAESIEDY
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the RHANERERR S - BIHA
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference FIBEENEERBEES D
between fair value of any consideration paid and the EITHR S o T {EMRE
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net BHAAEBELEFEEMNFT
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains WEEKN B AR FEEREE
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are B ERE AR o MIEE
also recorded in equity. % 7 75 1Y BR B R & U8 TN EC 8%

et o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEE2HBEEE
(Continued)
2.5 Segment reporting 25 DE®E
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent KRS E R E BEERKER
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 1,@%-;.‘5#&%#] BARETH - A%
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, EEXERATESNREELER
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing XE BEOIRERKFHEES
performance of the operating segments, has been BP2 RIF o
identified as the chairman and executive directors of the
Group.
2.6 Foreign currency translation 2.6 MEBRE
(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) DHEREIEH
Items included in the Financial Information of the REEM B ERPTSIEB
Group are measured using the currency of the DERAREEEEMELE
primary economic environment in which the Group KERENEB([heE
operates (the “functional currency”). The Financial M)t E - I ERAE T
Information are presented in Hong Kong dollars, (REBMIHELZ2YEE)
which is the Group’s functional and presentation 27l -
currency.
(b) Transactions and balances (b) BRI
Foreign currency transactions are translated into INER FIRZ 5 E BRER
the functional currency using the exchange rates EENIER EHMTE=MEE
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or BRERNERY - BZEXR
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign 5 & A A LA K A LA NS
exchange gains and losses resulting from the ATENEBEENRBERST
settlement of such transactions and from the £ 2= 0 S T 2 AR B HNEE LU
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary mREERE R e RaE &
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign NHER ©
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate HEEMReRREEHEE
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents B B B8 B SN s K R R
are presented in the consolidated statement of BHEGEARERP RS -
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, or the remaining lease term,
whichever is shorter.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Leasehold improvements

Computer, furniture and
equipment

Motor vehicles

2% per annum

6.7% per annum
20% per annum
20% per annum

20% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are largely independent
cash inflows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of
non-financial assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for
possible reversal at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
category: loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’
(Note 17), ‘other receivables’ (Note 18), ‘amounts due from
non-controlling interests and related companies’ (Note 33),
‘bank deposit’ (Note 19) and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
(Note 20) in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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AU BRRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a floating interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.11 Inventories 2.11 FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of inventories comprises
materials to be consumed in the rendering of services.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.
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AU BRRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised directly in equity.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
companies now comprising the Group operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill;
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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AU BRRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks on behalf of subsidiaries or related parties to secure
loans and other banking facilities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.20 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued) 2.20 HIEEIRE K (8)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time
of signature is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms and the value of the premium agreed
corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation.
No receivable for the future premiums is recognised.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by management'’s
judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for the render of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown, net of returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’'s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Revenue from the provision of printing services is
recognised when services are rendered.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(iii) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the respective leases.

(iv) Management fee income, license fee income,
information technology (I.T.) training services income
and pre-press processing and customer service fee
income are recognised when the related service are
rendered.

(v)  Scrap sale income is recognised when the scrap
materials are delivered to the customers.

MBEREERER ZANAAE
ERIEBRPITHER - NER]
BRAEOE  MBERAROIAEE
"AE AMEBERBEXTFHEE
EAEEN G EBEREERES
HEEMETE - ARG EE
WRTBN THER © MILHERIR - A
SERNZERB THABERIIGES
BRREBEREG L 18HEE

RH)E I BE (ERE TS P
FRBENREGLITNRSESE -
ZEEFTIRBEUR Z &8 KB
{E RS TR R S 30 3 DA 3R FE 1 F BT
BE - MREBANE BB AR ERZE
RIERABARER - LRERAER
BERERBEINTIR G fH 6 Wat
RP2H e

2.21 WA TR

WABREEASEERF X BIED
RHREMCUREBRREZAR
BE - IR BRACHIBREE S
(CIEPSE7Ei

WA B AR « R
R am ANEE  URFAT
S AT A R B 2 R R U
1 - AEEERIKA - AR
ERBE R W RESER
SRMURELI 2B RIS

()  REERARE 2 W AR R HE
AR TSR RERR ©

(i) A2 AR ) He ] 7 E
R ERNBAHER

(i) EERALNEREREBZ
HHE RRHER -

(iv) BEEZEWRA - EREBIA
BB IE IR UA A K
ENAT AN T J B P AR5 B U A
R HAERE IRAS I RERR -

(v BENEHEBRARRAETR
RISEEEE R o

2013/14% 4  eprint EEARAT 83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

2

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes for its employees. Contributions are
made based on certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are recognised as employee benefit
expense as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the schemes. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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B O EIRRM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.23 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

2
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TRETHERBRE @

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.24 Leases 2247 E

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors
where appropriate.
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ARRBEERD KBS - R EE
ARRRBERAES (3R ) HER
HREA - RAKEA YR E
RBAIE -

2013/14% 4  eprint EEARAT 87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU BRRME

3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging

activities are undertaken by management.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
its business is supported by an I.T. support services
centre located in the PRC. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi (“RMB") against Hong Kong dollars. The
Group does not hedge its foreign exchange risk as
its exposure to foreign exchange risk is low as the
Group's cash flows mainly denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

At 31 March 2014, if Hong Kong dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 3% (31 March 2013:
3%) against RMB with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax would have
been HK$1,825,000 lower/higher (2013: HK$8,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB-
denominated bank deposits, other receivables and

other payables.

(b) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due from
related companies and non-controlling interests. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, all the bank deposits
are deposited at reputable financial institutions.
Management does not expect any losses from non-

performance by these institutions.

3
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Most of the Group's sales are settled by cash or
credit cards. Trade receivables of the Group are
mainly due from credit sales. The Group's exposure
of concentration risk is insignificant as no external
customers contributed over 10% of the Group’s
trade receivables.

Based on the Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables, other receivables
and amounts due from related companies and non-
controlling interests, the directors consider the
Group'’s credit risk of these receivables to be low.

The Group considers that adequate provision for
unrecoverable trade receivables and amounts due
from related companies has been made in the
relevant accounting periods after considering the
Group’s experience in collection of trade receivables
and amounts due from related companies.

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash flows of banking facilities,
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, which
are generated from the financing activities and the
operating activities, respectively.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groups based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of the discounting is
not significant.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment.

3
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 BKEBREREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEBEE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELEAEMZE)
The directors believe that such borrowings and EFHE ZSEENRE
obligations under finance leases will be repaid in HEETHEETBZRES
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set REFRBETEEERABH
out in the loan agreements. B -
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TROMAEENSHE
liabilities into relevant maturity groups based on & DIRBEERBEAETE
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan ERFBEAE  WEFTA
agreements with the consideration of the effect of RERERBBERNEESHE
repayment on demand clause. AAEEA R HAEER o

Between Between
On  Within 1and2 2and5 Over
demand 1 year years  5years Total

BEX %A “ERE RFNLE fast
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEr TRz Tz TER TER  TEx

As at 31 March 2014 RZZ-MF=A=1-H
Borrowings and interest expenses  fEE R F| S % 9,681 - - - - 9,681
Obligations under finance leases ~ BIETEEE THETR

and interest expenses FERX 4,036 8,108 8,091 7,204 - 27439
Trade payables BARATIE - 2490 = = - 2490
Other payables' EtERFE = 1,658 = = - 1,658
Amounts due to directors ENEZFE - 350 - - - 350
As at 31 March 2013 W-T-=%=f=1-H
Borrowings and interest expenses & KA 8H% 17,230 4,286 4,286 12,857 - 38,659
Obligations under finance leases ~ BETREETHELR

and interest expenses MERS 6,913 7128 6,436 13,204 - 33,681
Trade payables LS REMATE - 2453 - - - 2453
Other payables’ H AR - 3,302 - - - 3,302

. Excluding advanced receipts from customers and accrued ! AlE R FA R B AR
expenses. ohe
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEREREw ;
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MIBEABREE@)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) () RBELEREKE)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TEAMAEEN B EA
liabilities into relevant maturity groups based on & DIRBEERBEAHETE
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan EEFBEAE  WEFA
agreements and the effect of any repayment on FREKREEBRROTE
demand clause is ignored. S ABRAEIEER -

Between Between
Within 1and2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total

—FR —EZ=f Z—ERF #ENUL st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TEx FTErR TEx TErR TR

As at 31 March 2014 RZT—F

=RA=+—H

Borrowings and interest  EENFSH X

expenses 9,717 - - - 9,717
Obligations under finance FI&HEIE THY

leases and interest FEERFERY

expenses 10,114 10,010 7,469 27,593
Trade payables O ANE 24,920 = = - 24,920
Other payables' H it JE TR IE! 1,658 - - - 1,658
Amounts due to directors [EffEZEIE 350 - - _ 350
As at 31 March 2013 NZZT—=4%F

=RA=+—H

Borrowings and interest  {& & &M S5 %

expenses 15,284 7,587 16,426 - 39,297
Obligations under finance FEMEETH)

leases and interest BEERFERT

expenses 10,193 8,442 15,388 - 34,022
Trade payables B 5N FIA 24,531 - - - 24,53
Other payables' Hfth fE {50 3,302 - - - 3,302

! Excluding advanced receipts from customers and accrued ! FUE P o8 R BT B AR
expenses. gh o
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings,
obligations under finance leases, amounts due from
the related companies, a loan to third party, bank
deposit and cash at banks.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, the Group’s interest-
bearing assets were bank deposit, which is of fixed
interest rates and cash at banks, which bears variable
interest rates.

The Group’s income and cash flows from operations
were substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the significant interest-bearing
assets were either fixed or not expected to fluctuate
significantly.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash and cash
equivalents held at variable rates.

For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014, if
interest rates on borrowings had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before income tax would
have been approximately HK$325,000 lower/higher
and HK$235,000 lower/higher respectively. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date. The 100 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of
reasonable possible change in the interest rate which
has the most impact on the Group over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, obligations under
finance leases at fixed rates expose the Group to
insignificant fair value interest rate risk as the fixed
rates approximate market interest rates.

3
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3

BEERER T
3.2 EXERERE ‘

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to finance
its operations with its owned capital and to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders and return capital to shareholders.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt
is calculated as borrowings and obligations under finance
leases.

The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2013 and 2014 were as
follows:

AEBNEREERE - EED/{EE
BEAEFEEALREAD A g
BEE - ARBRRREM @i&&%ﬁ
5B EH RN -

RERHARENERE  AKEA
ABRNTERRZBEEEENEER

$’§l?§ﬁ¥|‘§1ﬁﬂ REEERRE

CLREREAKRF o L RTIRE
ﬁ%w%ﬁ BRAREZ REGTE - B4
BIORBEENREEEETHE
(Eaac

RIE-—=FR_ZT-—NOF=H
=t HEMEERBLLER2TIIT

As at 31 March

KR=H=+-—H
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET TET
Borrowings (Note 26) EE (Kf5E26) 9,681 37,230

Obligations under finance lease MEMSETHEE

(Note 27) (FF&E27) 26,314 31,979
Total debt BfEEsE 35,995 69,209
Total equity S ME%E 164,794 71,925
Gearing ratio EEBELR 22% 96%

The decrease in the gearing ratio for the years ended
31 March 2013 and 2014 resulted primarily from
repayment of borrowings by the Group.

BEABLEREE-_ZT— =K

T -WFE=A=+—HBLFE
ATREIEHNAEBEEEERN
@(o
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial
assets, including bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due
from related companies and non-controlling interests,
current financial liabilities, including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to directors, obligations under
finance leases and borrowings approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities, and non-current liabilities,
including obligations under finance leases and borrowings
as their interest rates approximate market interest rates.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to
the Group for similar financial instruments.

3

BEERER
3.3 AAEEME

AEEzRBDERMEE(BRERT
TR ReMRLFEER  BH
FEMRIR - Eo U R IR K e s R
BATMIFERERTIR) C RP
TREE(BRESENFKA  H
N FRARENESTHA) &
EHERTEEMMEEZREESR
BEZAREERE  REEEH
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PHRBERMNME  £MAEZAR
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ERBEUeRmIAASHNREAETS
MERFREEH o

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4 RSG5 RHAE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are e R MBS S D8 - WER BT

based on historical experience and other factors, including K REMEZE  BIEESEIBR N

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable AREHZ2TBE -

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the REBERKIELGHEFRERE - FIEXR

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, eETURESR)  ELHEHEREH

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and BERER - H TNETHRFEERNAEBF S

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material EEMEBBEREEAERBEABRZEKR

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities B 2 (et NIRRT AT o

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated provision for impairment of (a) EWE=FRBESFFERE
receivables from third parties and related SRR
parties
The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables REERBEMNKE =77 RBET K
from third parties and related parties based on an TR H) P Y B 14 3t 52 5 FE R TE R
assessment of the recoverability of these receivables. SEREAE o B E S E
Provisions for impairment are applied to these receivables FERN A BE AU B A5 eRRE BV B
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that WORIE R E R - BRIRBRFEZRE
the balances may not be recoverable. The identification FA VT R 55T - (MTEERE RIR R 3K
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and WG st - ZEREEER AT
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the I8 & A B R /O PR W 3 0B R BR A
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying FTHBRMEE -
amounts of receivables and doubtful debt expense in the
period in which such estimate is changed.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated provision for impairment of
receivables from third parties and related
parties (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the total amount of
the provision was HK$11,000 (2013: HK$48,000). If the
financial conditions of customers and related parties of the
Group were to change, resulting in an impairment of their
abilities to make payments, additional provision may be
required.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different from those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain for the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

4

AR AT RAE »

(a)

(b)

(c)

ERE=ZFRBERFERE
R EHRE 2)
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5 Segment information 5 SEEER
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with S ER AR E B R A TR A E
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision- ER WA ER ASKE L EFE
maker. The chief operating decision-maker has been identified WRABETBKEREKE - ARAEEE
as the Board of Directors of the Group. As the Group is EREBIRMEHRIRS - BASHEUER
principally engaged in the provision of printing services, which B - MERTBIES ANEE IR
are subject to similar business risk, and resources are allocated (T 3 AR E B ) BEA AT EE
based on what is beneficial to the Group in enhancing the value ToHE ﬁ%;};’&ﬁ$$@ﬁ’]%i§'ﬂa
as a whole rather than any specific unit, the Board of Directors FEERKEEBREGRRERANGR - I
considers the performance assessment of the Group should be BASEXEBRLSER —EREsHE
based on the profit before income tax of the Group as a whole HEERNETEER - Jtt BEeR
and regards the Group's business as a single operating segment BIRERE B EHRELAESR J 88— 4L &
and reviews financial information accordingly. Therefore, the DEIBTREES —FLED -E‘B o
Board of Directors considers there to be only one operating
segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8-Operating
Segments.
The subsidiary incorporated in the PRC provides I.T. support R BB RAREREER
services within the Group. Since the Group only operates in %B?Eﬁi\éﬂﬂﬁﬁkﬁlﬁ% AR AREE
Hong Kong and the Group's assets are mainly located in Hong EREBLEELREEANEEFEMR
Kong, no geographical segment information is presented. B8 ﬁ%ﬁhﬂﬁ’\-‘ﬁéﬂiﬁlj 0
For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014, no external Bz - 22— =6k _-_ZFT—NFE=H
customers contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue. =+—n szﬁf MEIIEBEF BRI
B10% R AREE Y -
6 Revenue, other income and other losses —net 6 U - HiW A R HitEsiE —
FE
2014 2013
—E—OmF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
Revenue U &
Provision of printing services IR AL ED ol AR 755 304,562 284,498
Other income HaA
Management fee income (Note 33) EEBEWA(M7E33) 270 1,080
Scrap sales EERHEE 4,748 4,426
License fee income (Note 33) R PR B U A (B 5E33) 187 -
I.T. training services income B ERHIE RS A
(Note 33) (FEE33) - 675
Pre-press processing and customer ENR I TR EP RBERA
service fee income (Note 33) (FfF3E33) 839 -
Sundry income HMIEIA 121 57
6,165 6,238
Other losses — net HAbEE — #58
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEEE
plant and equipment (Note 30) (FH7E30) (413) (1,198)
Exchange loss — net i 5 518 —F 5 (709) -
(1,122) (1,198)
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BRESENEY 0 N

7 Expenses by nature 7
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution BIEHEKA  HE RO #HE U KIT q
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: WA ERNNFRZ DA T
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ZT—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of materials (Note 16) MR A (FfEE16) 112,220 106,674
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN N &
— Audit services —E: RS 1,302 449
— Non-audit services — TR 210 98
Employee benefits expense (Note 8) (& & &7 5 3 (Ff318) 73,374 59,146
Depreciation of property, Wz - B REEITE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (MtzE14) 11,269 9,945
Outsourced customer support IHBEELZEAS
expenses 11,717 5,141
Subcontracting fee SN E 8,343 14,041
Operating lease rental of premises ¥ L RENKLEHERS
and equipment 15,672 15,538
Repairs and maintenance HE RIRE 3,646 3,281
Distribution costs DA 7,414 6,536
Utility expenses ARARB I 6,526 5,422

Professional expenses incurred in ANAR ETMEENBEEMT
connection with the Company’s

Listing 17,626 1,275
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 W GIE R E RS
receivables (Note 17) (FF5E17) 11 48
Recovery of trade receivables W Bl 52 A il 3 0 B 5 e R IE
previously written off = (24)
Recovery of amount due from a e [B] — 2R e Wi B & 1) RIRKIE
related company = (36)
Others Hith 13,371 11,453
Total cost of sales, selling and HERAK  SHERDHASI UK
distribution expenses and THAX &8
administrative expenses 282,701 238,987
Others mainly represent credit card handling charges, HMIrEREARFESE  ESKEH
advertising and promotion expenses and telecommunication B BB o
costs.
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A BB WA MR S

EEFMX (BEESRS
REEEHEN)

8 Employee benefits expense (including 8
directors and senior management’s

emoluments)
2013
—E2—mF —TE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT BT
Salaries and allowances e KoER 61,395 53,744
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 4,531 1,302
Share-based payments to directors ¥ E = LR 8 EREM X
and employees (Note 23) (PfFEE23) 1,696 -
Pension costs — contributions to BRIRE KA — A R B H GBI R
defined contribution plans (MizFa)
(Note a) 4,549 3,096
Welfare and other benefits &7 R H A 2 1,203 1,004
73,374 59,146

Notes:

Pension — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group's
subsidiaries (the employer) and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme generally at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions
of each of the employer and the employees are subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,250 (2013: HK$1,250) per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes to
state-administered retirement plans for employees in the PRC. For the PRC,
the employees contribute up to 8% of their basic salaries, while the Group
contributes approximately 17% to 22% of such salaries. The Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirements
benefits beyond these contributions. The state-administrated retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the amount of the Group’s employer
contributions to defined contribution plans was HK$4,549,000 (2013:
HK$3,096,000). There was no forfeited contributions to the MPF Scheme
which has been utilised for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
HK$73,000). As at 31 March 2014, contribution payable to the MPF Scheme
amounted to HK$426,000 (2013: HK$381,000).

GEX

BIRE - FERFEE

AEEERHEEBERE2MAHIEATESE
(MeE2stE ) MZE AR BB
REANEEN-BEFEHRNGE - BIR®E
SFE - AKENERNBAR(EEI) R
Hg8&war Arzat 8K MIREEH
HRAEEEN - HREB—RA/ERKRAN
5% ° HEEXREBNTAMHKERR,250
BIL(ZT—=% :1,25087T) * B LR
Z BRI B FRER - BRERSN  AREIE
HibBRRKBRENNEE

IR BDAGIFERRE - ARBEAEEE
TREERRHBERELORARTEIHRK - 7
TE - BEEREFHFFELHRZ8% IMEH M
AEBERIZERFEH17%E22%EH 4
e BREHRFIN ARETEEMERE
B ARARS SRR RBFIZ AL - BRINE
B2ERAES B mBEREIRARINGT B

HE_Z-WE=/A=+—HIEE A%
] 73 1B 2 17 SR E 1 ARGT B 16 304,549,000
B (ZZ— =4 : 3,096,000/ T ) ° #H
E_ZE-NE=ZF=+—HLEELES
ARELKEREFTERR(ZT—=F:
73,000/87L) c R=ZE—MWMF=A=+—
A - [ERsaiEE T E14150426,000/8 L (= F
— =4 381,000/ 7T) °
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-

8 Employee benefits expense (including 8 EEFFHEX(BIEES
directors and senior management’s REBEBEHMN) «
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Mz : (&)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) Ex a3
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the BEKAEBNARICH, EBAARFES
Company by the companies now comprising the Group are as follows: KB BRI T

2014

—E-NOF

HK$000

FET
— Fees —He 1,113 -
— Salaries and allowances —¥r& KRR, 2,994 1,275
- Discretionary bonuses —WIEIEAL 185 -

— Pension costs — contributions to defined —iRRE AR — M) FUE SERET B K

contribution plans 45 15
- Share based payments — BB 1,146 -
5,483 1,290
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BB RRNIE I ——

8 Employee benefits expense (including
directors and senior management’s
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chief executive officer of the Group. The

emoluments of each director of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014 is set out as below.

n

BAAX(BREESKS

=
REBBEHM) «

BsE - (&)

5

EE L E-))

SREKEATEBTREH - AAREE
ERHE—T-ME=A=+—RALEEN
HEBAIWT -

Pension costs -
contribution

Salaries to defined
and  Discretionary  contribution Share-based
allowance bonuses plans payments
BIKERA-
B R EMRRK
He HEREH MERA sTEIHR BRERS At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors TES
Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBEEE 225 1,794 - 15 - 2,034
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai FRERE 90 480 11 15 573 1,269
Mr. Fung Hong Keung BRREE 20 720 74 15 573 1,472
Non-executive Directors ~ FHTEE
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki Hengs 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MEELE 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Leung Wai Ming PEHLE 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Leung Yat Pang s 138 - - - - 138
Independent Non- BYFHITES
executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BREREE 39 - - - - 39
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen 3B % 4 39 - - - - 39
Ms. Luk Mei Yan ExXBaL 39 - - - - 39
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah Rt 39 o - - - 39
1,113 2,994 185 45 1,146 5,483
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B (BEES

8 Employee benefits expense (including 8 {EE&
REBEEFHM) =)

directors and senior management’s
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MIEE : (48)

(b)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EBHFEME)
The emoluments of each director of the Company for the year ended ARREEERBE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—
31 March 2013 is set out as below. HIEFERFMESI T -

Pension costs -

contribution

Salaries to defined
and Discretionary contribution Share-based
allowance bonuses payment

fika e RoRdh BB B IR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FAT THEL TAT AT

Executive Directors YITEE
Mr. She Siu Kee William RAELE - 1,275 - 15 - 1,290

Non-executive Directors ~ JF#TES

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HeHEs - - - - - -

Mr. Lam Shing Kai PRAEAE R 4 - _ _ _ _ _

Mr. Leung Wai Ming DERE 4 - - _ _ _ _

Mr. Leung Yat Pang 2k h - - _ _ _ _

- 1,275 - 15 - 1,290
The remuneration shown above represents remuneration received and FRATREFMIEREEENEHE—T—=F
receivable from the Group by these directors in their capacity as employees RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—HILFEEREE
to the Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the Company for the BES R/ IEARARESMC KR REEK
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014. The underlying share options of the REENFHH o ERATRERER S 2486
share-based payment shown above were cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant BRECKR-T—NFRANBREHES
to a resolution passed by the Board. No directors waived or agreed to waive BB —ERERTHE RBEZE-_ZE—=
any emoluments for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014. ER-_T-NFE=ZA=+—ALEFE  #E

EEMEXRBREEAHE -
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8 Employee benefits expense (including 8
directors and senior management’s
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(o) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include three directors (2013: one director), whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining two individuals (2013: four individuals) are as follows:

n

BT -

BARX (BREERS

=
REBBEHM) «

(%)

hE&sHAL

AEENRIERSHFALEE=Z2EE(=
T—=F: —ZEF)  ZFEFOFHC
REXZIMDHTH R - BABFTREA
T(ZB—=F  WBALD)NHFHOT

2014
—Z-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
— Salaries and allowances — e RoERL 1,016 2,211
- Discretionary bonuses —BBIEA 165 111
- Pension costs — contributions to defined —RIRE A — MR EH KRB
contribution plans 30 55
— Share-based payments — B 573 -
1,784 2,377

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following bands:

FZENLRHENE AT 665 -

2014
—2-ImF

HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FET

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/ 7T

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or other
members of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, upon
joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AEEGEAEMEEROLERSHFALD
MEAMK S X NSRRI MBEAREE -
FEERR - BERASE MR RIE RSB

18
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9 Finance costs — net 9 ®MERAK-—FHE
2014 2013
—E-nmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Finance income BB WA
— Interest income from bank deposits ~ —$R7T 1750 F S U A 1,147 31
— Interest income from amounts due  — fEUR EFiE A BIRIBF B U A
from related companies (F3E33)
(Note 33) = 801
— Interest income from loans to —BFE=ZFHERF WA
third parties = 144
1,147 976
Finance costs BhE R
— Finance charge on obligations —BEHEmEREE TR
under finance lease FELEE A (995) (1,012)
— Interest expenses on borrowings —EBENERX (899) (712)
_________________________________________________________________________________________ (1.894)  (1.724)
Finance costs — net BEE AR — 5 (747) (748)

2013/14%5  eprint EEER AT 103




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI ERRME

10 Investment in subsidiaries - Company

Investments, at cost
— Unlisted shares

T

BE - AR
A )

10 RERHBLE -FARQFH

2014
—E-mF

HK$'000
FTExT

73,897

1|

2013
—T—=F
HK$'000
T

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had direct and indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name of Company

DAER

eprint Digital Holding Limited

eprint Bannershop Group
Limited'

Promise Network Holding
Limited

E-Print Group Limited

Place of incorporation/
establishment
SR,

137 3t 2

The Bristish Virgin Islands
(“BVI")

RBRAHS
([RBRXES])

The BVI
REBRLHS

The BVI
REBRUES

The BVI
RBRUES

W=F-—ME=A=+—A0  KRFAR

TOIMEARGA B R EEER

Issued and fully
paid up/registered
share capital
BRTR
RRAR/ERBRA

Authorised U5$50,000 ordinary
shares and fully paid up 1
ordinary shares of US$1.0 each

50,000( AT EBRR 2B
REREE ORI EBER

Authorised US$50,000 ordinary
shares and fully paid up 1
ordinary shares of US$1.0 each

50,000 TEE BBR K 28R
REREEOETHEER

Authorised US$50,000 ordinary
shares and fully paid up 2,887
ordinary shares of US$1.0 each
(2013: 1 ordinary share of
US$1.0 each)

50,000 AT BB L2 B4R
2,887 R B IXEE.0%TTH)
LTER(ZE—=F  1kER
EfE1.0ETHERR)

Authorised US$50,000 ordinary
shares and fully paid up 50,000
ordinary shares of US$1.0 each

50,000 T0EE B BR N 2 AR
50,000 B EE1.0%TTH)
LRk

Effective
interest held

RRNEREDS
Indirectly
held

B
BH

Directly
held

HE
oLl

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

Principal activities

FREBED

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR
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10 Investment in subsidiaries - Company

(Continued)

Place of incorporation/
Name of Company establishment
SR,
NREW Bl 1 %

Promise Network Printing Hong Kong
Limited &
Rk LERIARD A

Invoice Limited Hong Kong

BERERIBERAR BE

Kimley Technology (HK) Lmited Hong Kong
SRBR(BB)BRAR BE

Dajinlai Technology The People’s Republic
(Shenzhen) Limited? of China (“PRC")

AERBRORIDBERAR?  hEARAMB(HE])

Lucky Gainer Limited Hong Kong

HERAERLA £

Design Easy Limited Hong Kong

it 5 (BB BERAR BE

Digital Printing Centre Limited Hong Kong
EIBEIRIR LBR AR BE

Issued and fully
paid up/registered
share capital
BRTR
2EBRERBA

Authorised 10,000 ordinary shares
and fully paid up 2,886 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,0008 %7€ & BR Rk 258
2,886k BIREE 1B T L K

Authorised 10,000 ordinary shares
and fully paid up 1,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,0005 & ik k 28R
1,000l SR EE BTN L Bk

Authorised 10,000 ordinary shares
and fully paid up 2,775 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,0005 Fimk k2 BE R
2,775REREEVATH L ER

Registered share capital of
RMB1,000,000
AR%1,000,0007T i AR A

Authorised 10,000 ordinary shares
and fully paid up 2 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,00000% 7 &k k2 8B5R
REREEIETHEER

Authorised 10,000 ordinary shares
and fully paid up 2,775 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,0005 & ik k 2 A
2,775 BRAE VS LA EE R

Authorised 10,000 ordinary
shares and fully paid up 10,000

ordinary shares of HK$1 each
10,0000 & BB K 2B

10,000 SR E{E1BTTH)
LR
! The subsidiary has been disposed of on 3 June 2014. !
2 The English name of a subsidiary mentioned above represents the best 2

effort by management of the Company in translating the Chinese name as

it does not have official English name.

10 REVRHMBLAT —AXDT a2

Effective
interest held Principal activities

BENEREE IEEBED

Directly Indirectly

held held

Hi A
BE BE

100% Provision of printing
services

RAENRI RS

70%  Provision of printing
services

REENRI RS

- 100% Investment holding
REER

- 100%  Provision of
|.T. services
REEARRS

- 100%  Provision of
management
service

REEERS

- 100% Provision of
printing services

REENRI RS

- 100% Inactive

REXH

ZMBARCR T —MFEA=ZAHE -

B EXRANMERARLEE F RIS
W RRXEAWDARDEREZ NIRES
NEEB R HGES -
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11 Investments in joint ventures 11 E2bENRE
2014 2013
—EF-mE —F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At beginning of year REF) 1,235 220
Share of profits of joint ventures FE(EAE S DEHT 1,776 1,022
Currency translation differences M H =5 (89) (7)
At end of year REFL 2,922 1,235
Details of the Group’s joint ventures which are held by the R-ZE—NMFE=ZF=+—HHBAKRK
companies now comprising the Group as at 31 March 2014 are SEERAFBENLAEE S ERERF
as follows: BT :

Form of business Place of Effective Principal
Name of joint venture and structure incorporation interest held activities
BELELR ERFAREE o R 2 3t B BENERER IEEKIH
E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Incorporated with limited Malaysia 30% Provision of
liability B3R printing services
IS A A ENRI AR 7%
EREARNT
E-Print Bannershop Limited Incorporated with limited Hong Kong 50% Leasing of premises
liability 5 WEHE
ERilp Ay
EREARNT
(a) Summarised financial information for joint venture (a) B CEMKERBE
Set out below is the summarised financial information T 3 # %] E-Print Solutions Sdn.
for E-print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. The information disclosed Bhd MBI EEHEE - FTHBRME
reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements BRMAEES ERENTEREA
of the relevant joint venture, and not the reporting entity’s FT25H &5 - M FEERE LR
share of the amount. It has been amended to reflect e - BEHENEKEINR
adjustments made by the reporting entity when using BREERE B AR AR EL R
the equity method, including fair value adjustments and AR BEAABENARKAE
modifications for differences in accounting policy. EETBORE B M EL AEE] o
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11 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 11 EELENRE
(a) Summarised financial information for joint venture (a) EELERBEREBE»)
(Continued)

Summarised statement of financial position

Bt IR R

2014 2013
—E—MF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Current assets REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEFMBEAEE 7,492 3,662
Other current assets Hireh&EmE 4,289 1,469
11,781 5,131
Current liabilities RBEE
Financial liabilities SREE
(exclude trade payables) (TBIEESENRIE) (3,562) (2,669)
Other current liabilities HEfnBaE
(include trade payables) (PIEB S EMNZRIE) (8,350) (6,156)
(11,912) (8,825)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Assets B E 19,465 21,631
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Financial liabilities EHEE (9.808) (14,062)
Other liabilities Hih&E (16) -
___________________________________________________________________________________ (9,824)  (14,062)
Net assets EEFHE 9,510 3,875
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11 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 11 EELENRE D
(a) Summarised financial information for joint venture (a) EELEMBEERME»)
(Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEWBRBE

2014 2013

—E2—mF —TE—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Revenue g 57,629 42,131

Depreciation E (2,158) (1,009)

Finance cost B & R AR (933) (639)

Profit before tax Bk 35 Al 8,019 3,412

Income tax expense Frigfif (2,100) (6)
Net profit and total comprehensive R iR A WS A RE

income 5,919 3,406

Reconciliation of summarised financial information BMEERNMENYER

2014 2013

—E-mF —ET—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Opening net assets as at 1 April RUA—BRFVEEFRE 3,875 490

Issue of share capital AR EE 1T - _

Profit for the year F A F 5,919 3,406

Currency translation differences EHZER (284) (21)

Closing net assets FREEFHE 9,510 3,875
Interest in joint ventures at BREVBE S EER

percentages set out above AEDEORER 2,853 1,163

Goodwill BES 69 72

Carrying value IREE 2,922 1,235
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11 Investments in joint ventures (continued)

(b) Individually immaterial joint venture

In addition to the interests in joint venture disclosed above,
the Group has an individually immaterial joint venture,
E-Print Bannershop Limited, that are accounted for using

the equity method.

The carrying amount of E-Print Bannershop Limited is Nil as

at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

The Group did not recognise the share of losses of
individually immaterial joint venture of HK$14,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$18,000). The
cumulative unrecognised share of losses for the Group is
HK$44,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$30,000).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
investments in the joint ventures, and no contingent

liabilities of the ventures themselves.

On 3 June 2014, the Group has disposed of eprint
Bannershop Group Limited which holds a 50% equity

interest in E-Print Bannershop Limited.

12 Income tax expense

1

SR EMIRE o) .
(b) ERFEEMESELE

B EXORBAER SR ERERI
AEEHEE —BEHNTEENEE
1B ZE-Print Bannershop Limited -
HEERA#ERENR -

E-Print Bannershop Limitedi® ==
—ME=A=+—HNEABEAT

—R-=F )

AEEVEERD>GENTEE
VAR PEBRE T —NE=4
=+ —HBIEFE R14,000% TH
EHE(ZZ—=4 : 18,0008 7T) °
REFN _Z—NE=A=+—H
RETH R IER 9 1h B 18 /44,000
BIL(ZZF—=4 :30,000/7T) °

MEAWEAKENAELEREN
HARBE - MERAFIELRE

& °

RZE—MFEANA=H A5H
B H & eprint Bannershop Group
Limited + EF5ABE-print Bannershop
Limited 50% & ## o

12 FTEFHMAX

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T

Current income tax & RS
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER 5,536 6,599
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMSEH 15 -
— Over-provision in prior year — bt —FEHBERE (132) -
5,419 6,599
Deferred income tax (Note 28) RIEFTSH (M EE28) 1,116 1,608
Income tax expense — total IS — 4 6,535 8,207

T
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12

Income tax expense (continued)

Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year (2013: 16.5%). Subsidiary incorporated in
the PRC is subject to PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") based on
the statutory income tax rate of 25% for the year (2013: 25%)
as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax
rules and regulations. The Company has not been subject to any
taxation in the Cayman Islands as it does not have any assessable
profit for the periods since its incorporation.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities
in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

~ - TT——

12

BHEX e

REBFMR OB
{E.:Jrﬁ’éu%m/mfﬂﬁ;z165%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ (=&

1 16.5%) M BEBREE o B
EPI.&H}EJME’JW% RIZARIBRIE A
REATERERI RSERETENFEERAT
S E25%(ZF—=F : 25%)#
MABECEMBR([EMRSEHR]) - A
B H R A S DA SR 4 AT ] FE SR A Ui

R AR BEHREANHASEHESH
1H o

AAREFE

AN 52 [ B Bk P 15 5 A A 1 Z8 U Y
HIB SR A E AN RN EE DA RS
& HHE R HE N B0 IR W R E E A
EweBAMTR - ABBERAT

2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&xT T
Profit before income tax K& BT 1555 BT V4 ) 27,933 50,825
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% &3 16.5% 51 E W18 4,609 8,386
Tax effects of: NTEENREZE
— Share of profits of joint ventures —EIEEEREHF (293) (169)
— Income not subject to tax — AT A A (352) (359)
— Expenses not deductible for tax — TR A
purposes 2,722 374
— Utilisation of previously — B AL RIR R TIAEE
unrecognised tax losses (102) (94)
— Tax losses and other temporary — W RIELEFTISELAY
differences for which no HiEEE AR =58
deferred income tax was
recognised 78 71
— Effect of different tax rate of the — BB R RN TERER
PRC subsidiary & 5 (2)
— Qver-provision in prior year — F—FEBERE (132) -
6,535 8,207
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13 Earnings per share
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for
the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share for the years ended
31 March 2013 and 2014 have been retrospectively
adjusted to reflect 374,900,000 shares issued upon
capitalisation on 3 December 2013.

13 SREF

(a) EX

BREABNITIRBEARNR B ELER
BABERENBRUABE-_T—=
RZTE—ME=A=+—HIFE
BEETEBBINETFOEAE -

BT =FK_ZFT—UFE=H
=+ HIEFENTREARTN
TS HNE S EE (B B AR
URBMR-—ZE—=F+-_A=H%&
AL 1% %£17374,900,000AF A% 1D °

2014

—E-lmF

T

Profit attributable to equity holders

ZAYNGIL: $a35 RPN bRl

of the Company (HK$'000) (F#&T) 21,577 42,438
Weighted average number BEITEARMETSE(TR)

of ordinary shares in issue

(thousands) 415,753 375,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RXEZRZH (L) 5.19 11.32
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13 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Group has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Group’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as below is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

e

13 EREN =

(b)

w8

FREERNIRERBEINNE
B FHENEFHREE - X
BREERMBBELHETEREK -
ARRHA - REBECEEL R
BRE - SLBREM S - BRI
RITEBIAETM SR E
KERTEETIRECRAAEE
(BASERG O FHFEEMSHK
BET)BANBRMDEE - LTA
AAEMRDEE EHD BTN H
B (RRBEEEITE)ERLE -

Profit attributable to equity holders of the RRRERFE ARIERT

Company (HK$'000) (F&7T) 21,577
Weighted average number of ordinary shares %17 & @ A% INHE 19 &

in issue (thousands) (Fi) 415,753
Adjustments for: IREE -

— Share options (thousands) — BB (FAR) 216
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 4 A% # 58 22 7 &) & 3@ I& hnee

for diluted earnings per share (thousands) S CEAGHS) 415,969
Diluted earnings per share BREERR GBI

(HK cents) 5.19

HE_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFELXRF

The Company had no dilutive shares for the year ended 31
March 2013.
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14 Property, plant and equipment - Group 14 Y% BERSRE K&

Computer,
EEND] Leasehold furniture and Motor
machinery  improvements equipment vehicles Total

ERREE  AEUREE BN RERRR nE 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AT Thn T TR Titn

At 1 April 2012 RZZ-ZEmA-A
Cost KR 101,217 9,010 6,445 1,374 118,046
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (22,653) (5,286) (3,466) (183) (31,588)
Net book amount FHFE 78,564 3724 2,979 1,191 86,458
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-E-=F

ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount EEESE 78,564 3724 2,979 1,191 86,458
Additions RE 27,290 1,202 601 694 29,787
Disposals (Note 30) HE(HE30) (2,769) (837) (106) (616) (4328)
Depreciation (Note 7) HE(HT) (7,699) (1,062) (899) (285) (9,945)
Currency translation differences EREE - - 2 - 2
Closing net book amount EXBERTE 95,386 3,027 2577 934 101,974
At 31 March 2013 H=g-ZFzf=1-
Cost AR 125,317 8,121 6,264 1,278 140,980
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (29,931) (5,094) (3,687) (294) (39,006)
Net book amount FESE 95,386 3,027 2,577 984 101,974
Year ended 31 March 2014 Hz-3-mE

ZAZT-ALFE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 95,386 3,027 2,577 984 101,974
Additions RE 7,345 1,875 3,902 - 13,122
Disposals (Note 30) HE(H30) (107) (283) (25) - (415)
Depreciation (Note 7) HEMWHT) (8,726) (1,170) (1,118) (255) (11,269)
Currency translation differences EREE - - 2 - 2
Closing net book amount EXERGE 93,898 3,449 5338 729 103,414
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=1-A
Cost AA 132,507 8914 9,880 1278 152,579
Accumulated depreciation Eepit (38,609) (5,465) (4,542) (549) (49,165)
Net book amount FEE 93,898 3,449 5,338 729 103,414
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14 Property, plant and equipment - Group 14

(Continued)

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

ME - BERERE-—LEE»

AEENYE BEERBINEER

B HEA RS RPN

2014 2013

—EF-mE —F =%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT TET

Cost of sales $HE R AN 9,717 8,459
Administrative expenses TEFA Y 1,552 1,486
11,269 9,945

Machinery includes the following amounts where the Group is a
lessee under finance leases:

BEEEATHASEREREREE
REBAZER

2014 2013

—F-mE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFExT FET

Cost - capitalised finance leases KA—BRNEEHRE 50,804 59,819
Accumulated depreciation ZSxtinE (6,682) (7,783)
44,122 52,036

The Group leases various machinery under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are three to five years,
and ownership of the assets lie within the Group.

AEBREBETAHERERSHE LA

SEHBE -
A RE A -

HRR=FZ=RF HEE
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=

15 Financial instruments by category — Group 15 EERIZ oW ERMITE -
and Company B RAA T

The Group AEH
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables  profit or loss Total
BRER
ROAEE
EXRREKHE Sk EE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
Assets &E
As at 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=A
=+—H
Trade and other receivables excluding B 5 R EMEWGE
prepayments (TR ERMFE) 2,946 - 2,946
Amounts due from related companies FE U B 1 RSB 479 - 479
Bank deposit BITER - 18,004 18,004
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHEEEER 115,961 - 115,961
119,386 18,004 137,390
As at 31 March 2013 RZE—=%=R=1—H
Trade and other receivables excluding B 5 RAMEWGIR
prepayments (MRERAFE) 2,063 - 2,063
Amounts due from related companies e YNGTE O] 296 - 296
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHEEEER 71,086 - 71,086
73,445 - 73,445

Other financial

liabilities at
amortised cost
s RN
MEMEHEE
HK$'000
THT
Liabilities =0
As at 31 March 2014 R_Z-ME=A=+—H
Amounts due to directors [ENEZEHE 350
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) BE(TEREREREAE) 9,681
Finance lease liabilities HEAMERG 26,314
Trade and other payables excluding B9 R EMENTIE
non-financial liabilities (TafEELmaE) 26,578
62,923
As at 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) BE(TERERERERE) 37,230
Finance lease liabilities BHEANEEGE 31,979
Trade and other payables excluding B9 R EMERNTIR
non-financial liabilities (MEfEkerBE) 27,833
97,042
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15 Financial instruments by category — Group 15 E%EU%%H’J@@IE rE

and Company (continued) A F )
The Company ARTF
Loans and
receivables
BXREWFE
HK$'000
FAT
Assets BE
As at 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+—H
Other receivables excluding prepayments Hih IR (TeERENTE) 1
Amount due from a subsidiary [ EENE e 19,519
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries I GEESIENSIE 73,331
Cash and cash equivalents RelkBReEEER 1,314
94,165
As at 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—
Amount due from the ultimate holding company et Say) YN 1

Other financial

liabilities at
amortised cost
BEERAGE
HiteRmes
HK$'000
T
Liabilities =R
As at 31 March 2014 R-Z-—MFE=A=+—H
Amounts due to directors [ENESHE 350
As at 31 March 2013 T——E ﬂ_-l—
Amount due to a subsidiary F’éﬁW% 5,515
16 Inventories — Group 16 FE—XKHE
2014 2013
—E-mF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHxT THEIT
Inventories FE 3,123 3,736
The cost of materials recognised as an expense and included MBI AR ABFRZI T A [ 8HE K
in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$112,220,000 for the year Al -BE_T-HF=ZA=+—81F
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$106,674,000). FERI 12,220,0005%71(:%—E¢ :

106,674,000/ 7T) ©
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17 Trade receivables — Group

17 ESBYRE-AEE

2014 2013

—E-IF “T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHET

Trade receivables =) &R 2,379 1,803
Less: Provision for impairment W OREE = -
Trade receivables — net B S I IE — 558 2,379 1,803

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

Payment terms granted to customers are mainly cash on delivery
and on credit. The average credit period ranges from 30 days to
60 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

ARAEERRE S EEFIANKREE
HERNABEMBE

MEFREEONTHREREZREINK
MEE - FHEEBNF30BE60H -
REREA@®ETNE S RUBGIARER D
Mran T

2014 2013

—E—MmF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
1 - 30 days 12308 2,072 1,405
31 - 60 days 31£60H 150 266
Over 60 days HBim60H 157 132
2,379 1,803
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17 Trade receivables — Group (continued)

As at 31 March 2014, trade receivables of HK$899,000 (2013:
HK$736,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to
certain customers with no recent history of default. Based on
historic low default rate, the Group believes that no impairment
provision is necessary. The past due ageing analysis of these
receivables is as follows:

e

17 EZRWFIE-XEE o)

W-ZZE—ME=ZA=+—H ' 899,000
BTIHNESERFE(ZE—=F
736,000 70 ) B @ HA{E ROFE - 1t B
MW EERRENETERER - &
RBERERE  NEEREERERE
Bl - ZERWGTERNBEERER DTN
T

2014 2013

—EF-mE —F =%

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHBT

1 - 30 days 1230H 733 567
31 - 60 days 31£260H 58 96
Over 60 days HiE60H 108 73
899 736

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, trade receivables of HK$11,000
(2013: HK$48,000) were considered to be impaired and have
been fully provided for. These trade receivables were past due

for over 90 days.

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

RZEBE—=FL_FT—NF=A=+—
H 11,0008t E SEKZEBE(ZE
— =4 : 48,0008 7T ) W18 B E I
G REEFERFIAR BRI
E o

B 5 RWFRRE R BN ST

2014 2013
—E-pmEF ==

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

At beginning of year REA - -
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 WG IE R AR

receivables (Note 7) (B5E7) 1" 48

Written off as uncollectable L4 8 S AT Y [l & 58 (11) (48)

At end of year RELR - -
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17 E5BEREIE—&NEH 5

17 Trade receivables — Group (continued)

18

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk are the
carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.

All trade receivables of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade
receivables.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
- Group and Company

18

FENR IR R E R B IR MR E A
EHEARERANITHRAX - BER
MR AR — TR A A Y B R SNE &

AEFARNEANEERRT LW E
S MR 2 REE °

REEMAE S RYKAHAB T
B -

RSB L E 5 WK RS B ERE
an e

BE - AN RERE KK
- AEERAA

The Group KEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Other receivables H fth FE Y RIE 567 260
Deposits and prepayments (Note a) e RIBHAFHIE(MEa) 5,063 11,141
Deferred expenses to be recognised B ERER AR
as deduction in equity (Note b) EEMA (H5Eb) = 425
5,630 11,826
Less: non-current portion B IERENERD
Deposits and prepayments e RIBRFIE (3.164) (2,261)
Deposits, prepayments and other Re  BERARER
receivables — current portion o fEUGRIE — R B EB (0 2,466 9,565
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18

BTSRRI L B

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
— Group and Company (continued)

The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Amount mainly represents rental deposits, deposits for purchase of plant
and machinery, prepayments for utility, advertising and professional
expenses in connection with the Company’s Listing.

(b) Deferred expenses represent capitalised listing expenses which are deducted
from the share premium upon the Listing.

Other receivables were neither past due nor impaired and they
were interest-free and repayable on demand as at 31 March
2013 and 2014.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other receivables and prepayments approximate
their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

18 #&E - AN FIARE Mt UK

H-AEKEEREXAR @)

rEE (2

B -

(0 ZEWEIDEAERS - BEBERESN
e ARRBEMNKE - BAARLTE

MR EEREEMAX -

(b) EERX AR EHREROEBEMRAER
e LR -

RZE—=FR-_T—NF=A=+—
B - H YRR R B ER TR R RUE
BRRBAARERER -

ARBEERA - HMEURRMRIEN
RENREERERAEERS -

AREBERIRE - BN IR M EAD UK
HEREEEZETTAE -
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18

19

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
— Group and Company (continued)

The Company

2014
—B—-MEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&x THT
Deposits and prepayments (Note) e RIERFIE (M) 213 3,815
Deferred expenses to be recognised BRIERER AR 2 EER Y
as deduction in equity - 425
213 4,240
Less: non-current portion B IEmENERD
Prepayments TE A (126) -
Deposits and prepayments e RIERFIE - RE MK
— current portion 87 4,240
The carrying amounts of the Company’s deposits and ARANEe RN FKIENEREREES U
prepayments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. WBITETE ©
Note: B E
As at 31 March 2013, deposits and prepayments were made for professional RZT—=F=A=+—0 GFREBENZEBERR
expenses in connection with the Company’s listing. ARF FTEBNEERX -
As at 31 March 2014, amount represents prepayment for insurance premium. RZZ—MFE=A=1+—0  FEARREBNER
I e
. /= =% =5
Bank deposit — Group 19 RITFR—FEE
As at 31 March 2014, the effective interest rate of bank deposit RZZE—HFE=ZRA=+—H  RITEKX
was 2.50% per annum. This deposit has a maturity period of BREFERE2.50% c BEFANER
over 3 months and was denominated in RMB. HA=EANLE  MARKEEHE -
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20 Cash and cash equivalents - Group and 20 ReRRSEEER —KEH

Company RAAT
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following B MBRESEEERUTYEEHE
currencies:
The Group KEE
2014 2013
—E2-lmF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cash on hand FHEE®
Denominated in HK$ LB TTETE 154 372
Denominated in RMB IARBESHE 157 55
311 427
Cash at banks RITIRE
Denominated in HK$ LB TTETHE 37,596 70,268
Denominated in RMB IUARBEEHE 1,507 391
39,103 70,659
Bank deposits RITIEN
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE 34,000 -
Denominated in RMB IARBEHE 42,547 -
76,547 -
115,961 71,086
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.

20 Cash and cash equivalents - Group and 20 B4 RBRH4SZEEE - &

Company (continued) RARDT &)
The Company ¥ /N
2014 2013
—E2-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cash at bank RITHRE
Denominated in HK$ LA TTRHE 1,314 -
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank BITHESRBESBRITERAERIRZH
deposits rate. F R BREF B -
Conversion of bank and cash balances denominated in RMB BIAARBAHEZFRITRREEH LB
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of AN 7R B AT AR 5 89 SN B AR
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government. Bl X FR A5 BR 1)
21 Pledge of assets — Group 21 EEEAR -—FTKH
The Group had the following pledge of assets as collaterals to AEBBEUTEEMRCZERERR - U
secure the Group's obligations under finance leases (Note 27): ERAEEREMEETHET (M
27)
2014 2013
—E-mF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At net book amount: IRMEFE -
Plant and machinery under BEAEBRTHRE R
finance leases (Note 14) Has(MisE14) 44,122 52,036
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22 Share capital - Group and Company 22 RAER-KEFRAKDF

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
as at 10 January 2013 (date of
incorporation), 31 March 2013

ETE ¢

RZZE—=F— A+ H G
HE)  —ZT—=Fk=-F—NF
—A=+T—HEKREME0.01ET

Equivalent
nominal
value of
ordinary

shares
EERYHERE
HK$'000
FHET

Number of
ordinary

shares

EERHE

and 2014 (Note a) BB AR (Mtata) 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued: 51T :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZE—=F—A+8GHMKZA
issued as at 10 January 2013 H) EATEE0.01B TR BT Y
(date of incorporation) Elihg 1 -
Issue of new shares on RZZE—=F=A+N\BET
18 February 2013 iz in 99,999 1
As at 31 March 2013 (Note a) RZZT—=F=A=+—H(MzFa) 100,000 1
As at 1 April 2013 R-_ZE—=FMA—H 100,000 1
Issue of new shares pursuant BIE R BB ER TR D
to the global offering (Note b) (P 5Eb) 125,000,000 1,250
Capitalisation of shares (Note ¢) B (M 5EC) 374,900,000 3,749
As at 31 March 2014 RZZE—MF=A=+—H 500,000,000 5,000
Notes: Bt
(a) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 January (a) ARRRZZE—=F—A+BRHSHET
2013 with an authorised share capital of HK$100,000,000 divided into Az » JETE MR A A 100,000,000 7T © 5
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same date and on 18 /£10,000,000,000% & A& EE0.018 LA IE
February 2013, the Company allotted and issued one and 99,999 shares at HeRRAARRZZE—=F=-A+\H ' &
HK$0.01 per share, respectively. NAElS pIBC#E B 1T 1A% 199,999 ik B AR
fE0.01B TR °
(b) On 3 December 2013, the Company issued 125,000,000 new shares with (b) RZB—=9F+-"A=08 " XAFIZEEL
nominal value of HK$0.01 each for the placing at the offer price of HK$0.78 FRR0.788 L H) B EE % 17125,000,000 A%
each. The share issuance cost relating to the new shares amounted to BIREE0.01ETTAVHAR G © HEITARMNARE
HK$29,770,000, of which HK$17,626,000 is recognised in profit and loss H) % 10 3 7T A AN /29,770,000 70+ H A
(2013: HK$1,275,000) and HK$12,144,000 is credited to share premium 17,626,000 TR BHER(ZE—=F :
account of the Company. 1,275,000/ 70 ) 212,144,000 et AR R
AR R ERRE ©
(c) On 3 December 2013, the Company capitalised HK$3,749,000 by crediting (c) RZZE—=ZF+=-A=8 " XAFBAEAQ

the share premium account of the Company and applied such sum to pay
up in full at par a total of 374,900,000 shares for allotment and issue to the
then shareholders in proportion to their respectively shareholdings.

A& 19 5 B BR P BR %8 3,749,000 %8 7T T
AWEA(E - WIREEZHHE R EEZR’
RRESA BRI AIR S RETHE H
374,900,0000%f% 15 °
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23 Share-based payments - Group and
Company

Share options are granted to the directors and senior
management of the Company on 13 November 2013 (the “Date
of Grant”). The exercise price of the granted options is HK$0.78.
The options granted to the Grantees under the Share Option
Scheme shall be exercisable in accordance with the time as
indicated below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 1 April 2014, options in respect of 50% of the total
number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise
of the options granted to the Grantees under the Share
Option Scheme shall become exercisable;

On the second anniversary date of the Listing date (i.e. 3
December 2015), options in respect of 50% of the total
number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
the option granted to the Grantees under the Share Option
Scheme shall become exercisable;

All the options granted to the Grantees under the Share
Option Scheme that are not exercised by them prior to the
sixth anniversary date of the Listing date shall lapse and be
deemed as cancelled and void; and

The share options of the share-based payment were
cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant to a resolution passed
by the Board.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

23 BREEE - AEERAATL

R-F—=F+—A+=B&RHEA
H) ARRAEERFRELECDHE
BRYERE RO ZBREZITEER
0.788 7T » RIFMBBIE EIMARAR
2 BB AR R AR R T SCPAR B B A A
1718

(M)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZZ—WFMA—H  BREE
PRt B[R R AR 2 B AR i TE
TTEEM A T 31T B 2R50% K
FBREASR RRITTE

RETRBI=ZZ—AF+=A
ZR)E-BF - RiREBRE
B RAR AR LB IREETTEM
1 T 21T R 4 B50% ) BE Pk 1
R AR RITTIE

RIS AARAR LN E
MEEE(N EMBEHENBFZ
AL A R BT ) A5 SRR AL AR
REHEIEY R

BRERAXZEREER -0
FRAANAREBEAEESEBHN—
TR AL

e RTTE 2 FE AR 2 B Je BB B pn 4
BITEE ST

2014 2013
—E—UE —_EF—=
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option  (thousands)
BHBERE BinERE
FHITEE BRE THITEE fERtE
i (F) PETT (F1%)
At 1 April REA—H = = - -
Granted BEH 0.78 12,500 - -
At 31 March R=A=+—8 0.78 12,500 - -
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23 Share-based payments — Group and 23 BERERX-XEERALD T

Com pany (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry date and exercise price:

Exercise price

(%)

B 5 45 KBS R 1708 2 B AR AR O
ASRTEENT :

Options (thousands)

in HKS per BRE(TH)
share option 2014 2013
Expiry date B B & BHBRE
TEEBT —ZE-0OF —ET-=F
3 December 2019 —E-AFT+-A=H 0.78 12,500 -
12,500 -

The fair value of options granted during the year determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model was HK$0.23 per
option. The significant inputs into the model was share price
of HK$0.78 at the Date of Grant, exercise price shown above,
volatility of 47%, dividend yield of 3%, an expected option life
of 4 years and an annual risk-free interest rate of 0.74%. The
volatility is assumed based on the daily share price volatility of
the comparable companies for a historical observation period
equal to the life of the options.

An expense of HK$1,696,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for share options granted to
directors and senior management of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

FRABRHEHNEREAABEASHER
02387 IAREFERETEER
BT EXNEZHABEE AEREB
HAM P B450.788 7T ~ XAt 171F
B KEI847%  IRBE3% - Bt ER
RSN E R ERRF E0.74% °
BIERAI LB ARIRESERNERES
MHRMBABRBRNNE BREREMm

e

R-E—NFE=ZA=+—HBILFERN
1,696,000 LA It M AR R 2
FEENERERERLEREMNE O
AW RIER °
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.

24 Other reserves — Group and Company 24 HittRE - FAKRERAEAQAT

The Group REE

Share-based
Capital compensation EN Retained
reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
ExfiE  ROBERE PERE REEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TR THR T
(Note a)
(Mizka)
At 1 April 2012 RZE-_FNA—H 6,993 - 42 58,012 65,047
Profit for the year EERF - - - 42,438 42,438
Currency translation differences ERER - - (5) - (5)
Dividends (Note 29) fR & (Mizr29) - - - (37,760) (37,760)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F=A=1+—-H 6,993 - 37 62,690 69,720
At 1 April 2013 WZE-=FmA-H 6,993 - 37 62,690 69,720
Profit for the year EREF - - - 21,577 21,577
Currency translation differences EREE - - (182) - (182)
Share-based payments (Note 23) BRERT (F:23) - 1,696 - - 1,69
Deemed contribution from equity REEGEEARERRTE
holders upon Reorganisation (400) - - - (400)
Dividends (Note 29) e GIEIL)) - - - (14,999) (14,999)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+—H 6,593 1,696 (145) 69,268 77,412
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24 Other reserves — Group and Company (continues) 24 HAfEE - AXEBRAEA T )

The Company VNN

(Accumulated

Share-based losses)/
Capital compensation Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
(R&tE58)/
EXfEE ROFERBE RERF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT THERT THET
(Note b)
(FzEb)
At 10 January 2013 RZE—=5—HA+H
(date of incorporation) (FEfBRZEH) - - - -
Loss for the period HAfE B 1R - - (1,321) (1,321)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—=F=A=+—H - - (1,321) (1,321)
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—Z=FNA—H - - (1,321) (1,321)
Profit for the period HAfE & A - - 15,996 15,996
Contribution surplus ;AR 73,508 - - 73,508
Share-based payments BRERY
(Note 23) (ME23) - 1,696 - 1,696
Dividends (Note 29) BB (P EE29) - - (8,000) (8,000)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mFE=A=+—H 73,508 1,696 6,675 81,879
Notes: B E
(@)  As at 31 March 2013, capital reserve of the Group represents the (@ MIZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—RH FEENELR
aggregate values of share capital and share premium of certain subsidiaries EEREN N EENE THEB R RANRER R
comprising the Group. In June 2013, the Company paid a consideration i iaBHEEE KT —=FA8 &
of HK$400,000 to the then shareholders for transfer of equity interests REMAN—HD - ARFMER 2 RERZT
in certain subsidiaries as part of the Reorganisation. Such payment of 400,000 THIRE @ ERHEEETHEA
such consideration in cash was accounted for as the Group’s deemed RAIMRE - ZUBR e FAXNHNEBRRER
distributions to the then shareholders. ARRAEBEREMER KRR DI o
(b)  As at 31 March 2014, capital reserve of the Company represents the (by RIB-—MFEF=ZA=+—8 ARBDEALH
excess of the aggregate net assets values of the subsidiaries acquired by EIRAARWENBRARMNEEFELER
the Company over the nominal consideration payable by the Group for the B AREBEIRYE B A st W EE N B A R P
acquisition of subsidiaries pursuant to the Reorganisation. KRB ARBEHRE -
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25 Trade payables, accruals and other payables 25 B 5 E{f%1E - E“l‘z)\ E

=

- Group and Company ﬂﬂ@*ﬁ,)\lﬁ REERAEAT
The Group KEE
2014 2013
—B—-MEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Trade payables B S ENFRIE 24,920 24,531
Accruals and other payables FERTRRIA N HMh S FIE
Accrued expenses (Note a) FERTRA S (Mi5Ea) 11,440 7,517
Advanced receipts from customers TEl % PSR IE (b))
(Note b) 3,186 3,655
Other payables (Note ¢) HAth B FRE (B ) 1,658 3,302
16,284 14,474
Trade payables, accruals and B S ERRIE - EETHIR
other payables R EL At JE <P FRIE 41,204 39,005
Notes: s
(@) Accrued expenses are mainly relating to employee benefits expense and (a) EHEYTEAARANRRLITERESR
professional expenses in connection with the Company’s Listing. FHBEY R EERY -
(b)  Advanced receipts from customers represent payments received from (b) JEWEEZRIEETBWE B ERIRS 2 2

customers for printing services.
(0 HtENRBELIZEHERDHMIREE
(0) Other payables are mainly relating to selling and distribution expenses and B X
purchase of plant and machinery.

Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly on credit. The HEGEENNIIEZ TS AEZE - 2
credit period ranges from 30 to 90 days. BHI Y F30E90H
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25

Trade payables, accruals and other payables
— Group and Company (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date
is as follows:

T

B S RARE - BRIER HAt
FENFIR - AEBR AR T )

REZAMETNE S ENFERR S
Moy

2014

—E-ImF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
1 - 30 days 1%230H 9,043 9,241
31 - 60 days 31£260H 4,467 3,746
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,732 6,331
Over 90 days HiBo0H 5,678 5,213
24,920 24,531

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The Company

AEENEZRENFA - B UARE
A IR BREEE BB TTAHE

RATF]

alj

2014
—ZE-0mF

HK$'000
FTERT

FERTRASE

Accrued expenses

470 46

The carrying amounts of the Company's accruals are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of trade payables, accruals and other
payables approximate their fair values.

ARB R ER R BRE B B T
B

E5RMNHIE - B IR R B RN R
EMREEEREZ A BERS
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26 Borrowings - Group 26 EE-AEE

2014 AONIE]
—E-nmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current B
Bank loans BITER = 16,857
Trust receipt loans SEWEBEER 9,681 4,156
9,681 21,013
Non-current JERE
Bank loans gTER - 16217
Total borrowings BEBEE 9,681 37,230
The Group's bank loans and trust receipt loans were repayable as RNEBWIETEZRLRETKIEEFTER
follows: T EAREE -
2014 2013
—2-mF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THET
Bank loans (Note) IRITER(ME)
Within one year —&FR - 10,269
Between one to two years —EWF = 7,002
Between two to five years “ERF - 15,803
Over five years BERE - _
- 33,074
Trust receipt loans SRR E S
Within one year —FR 9,681 4,156
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26 Borrowings — Group (continued)

Wholly repayable within 5 years hERNEHER

26 BE—XEH

2014
—E-mF

2013
—T—=F
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FTExT

9,681 37,230

Note:

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause. The
carrying amounts of bank loans and trust receipt loans are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum) were
as follows:

Bank loans IRITER

Trust receipt loans

GEX
HEBHREENGEARETERABHE ¥

B AEREREEGRRZEE - RITERRE
FENIR BRI BRE (B9 A TTATHE -

I ER(F)M KT

2014 2013
—E-NEF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
N/A 3.14%
TERA
5.00% 2.57%

The fair values of the borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2013 and 2014 as all the borrowings
carry interests which are benchmarked against Hong Kong Dollar
prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"),
where relevant.

The borrowings of the Group are secured by personal and
corporate guarantee provided by related parties of the Group
(Note 33(c)).

Such personal guarantee provided by directors of the Company
has been released subsequent to the Listing.

RIE—=FR_FT-—NF=A=+—
B BENAABEEEKEERS -
RARMEEEDNZRBRETREEREE
MERBABRITRAZFER(THBRIT
RZEHFEE]D)(MERBFE -

AEBWNEETARANEER B RE
HEEA B2 RIHER (HEE33(0)) 1R
e

ZEBRARAEFREENBAZRDR
EREERR
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27 Obligations under finance leases — Group

Certain plant and machinery of the Group were held under
finance leases. No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations under
finance leases were repayable as follows:

2014
—E-mEF
HK$'000
FHET

27

MEEEE T ORI A8

AEEBETHRERESUBREHER
B AREBET L EMHAES MR
ek o AREREMER ITNEEARN
THIHEEE

Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments

REHEEMARK REESARERE

2013 2014 2013
= —F-mE —FT-=
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET TET TAT

Amounts payable under  FETHEETH

finance leases: FETFRIE -
Within one year —F R 10,114 14,383 9,392 13,326
Later than one year but ~ —FR&EFBBTE
not more than five years 17,479 19,639 16,922 18,653
27,593 34,022 26,314 31,979
Less: Future finance B RREEE A
charges (1,279) (2,043) - -
Present value of lease HESEMNBRE
obligations 26,314 31,979 26,314 31,979
Less: Amount due within & : JRBI B &R
twelve months R+=—@EAR
shown under B HA 2 308
current liabilities (11,620) (13,415)
Amount due after i |1 W -2 =1
twelve months 2508 14,694 18,564
Wholly repayable within ~ REXNZEEE
5 years 26,314 31,979

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the
lessor’s charge over the leased assets with net carrying amount
of HK$44,122,000 (2013: HK$52,036,000).

AEBREREE TETALAAY
HEEEFTEER  AEREFE
DR E44,122,0008 L (ZF—=4F ¢
52,036,000/ L) °
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27 Obligations under finance leases — Group 27 REHAEETHNEE-—LEH

(Continued) (4&)
The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum) were IEFEHER(F)FEMT -
as follows:

2014 2013

—E-NmEF —T=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHBT

Obligations under finance leases BMEAMEETHER 3.28% 3.30%

28 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group 28 EEMEBHEE—XEE
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BIEMESHREERBELEMSHEBEND
tax liabilities is as follows: Mo

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=fF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Deferred income tax liabilities to be BB+ — (@ A % U Bl HY IR IE

recovered after more than FrigtiaE

12 months (10,496) (10,913)
Deferred income tax assets to be HBid+ A B YW E IR

recovered after more than Frigti&E

12 months = 1,533
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEFTETHREEF5E (10,496) (9,380)
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28 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group (continves)y 28 IEEFIEHERE - XNEEH »)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax liabilities is as EIEFTSHABENAEENT -
follows:

2014 2013
—E-IF “T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
At beginning of year REF) (9,380) (7,772)
Recognised in the consolidated REPHRERERT
statement of comprehensive #ER(MHEE12)
income (Note 12) (1,116) (1,608)
At end of year REFLK (10,496) (9,380)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for BREMSHEERBBERFAN(HR—
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of BIREm A SRR B E BT -

balances with the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Accelerated tax depreciation

IR IETE

2014 2013
—F-NEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEHARS FHExT FHTT
At beginning of year TAEA) (10,913) (9,269)
Recognised in the consolidated REfHRERER T ER

statement of comprehensive income 417 (1,644)
At end of year TGRS (10,496) (10,913)
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28

29

Deferred income tax liabilities — Group (continved)

EEFRBHRERE

Deferred income tax assets

T

28

EEFEHAE-—FEE =)

Tax losses
HIREE
2014
—E-NmEF
HK$'000
F&T

2013
=4
HK$'000
T

At beginning of year REH] 1,533 1,497
Recognised in the consolidated NEFHEEWNERPER

statement of comprehensive income (1,533) 36
At end of year REF L = 1,533

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
losses through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$575,000 (2013:
HK$470,000) in respect of losses amounting to HK$3,484,000
(2013: HK$2,846,000). These unrecognised tax losses can be
carried forward to offset against future assessable profits and
have no expiry date.

Dividends

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board of Directors of
Invoice Limited declared the payment of an interim dividend of
HK$3,144.66 per ordinary share totalling HK$3,144,000 to its
then shareholders. The dividend was paid for the year ended 31
March 2013.

The Board of Directors of Promise Network Printing Limited
declared the payment of an interim dividend of HK$2,425
per ordinary share (2013: HK$12,321.47 per ordinary share)
to its then shareholders totalling HK$6,998,550 (2013:
HK$35,560,000). All dividends were paid during the year ended
31 March 2014.

On 11 November 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved to declare an interim dividend of HK$80 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$8,000,000 to its then shareholders. All
dividends were paid on the same date.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share,
totalling HK$20,000,000 in respect of the year ended 31 March
2014. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
payable.

29

BIEAMBHEETRAERABREBEEEES
e i 1B R R B SR B s A EIR M Bt 48
B MIBEBELER AEBEWERE
REAETIE3,484,00008 T ( — B — =4 :
2,846,000 ) BEMNIELERIBEE A
575,000/ 0 ( —Z&— =4 : 470,000/
TL) c RS AR BB A8 LUK
SHARERB AT AEEmBH -

3=\

HE-_Z—=F=A=+—HItFE "
EPRERIERARESERNEERNR
FORfT R HARR BB B 3,144.66
BT 0 513,144,000 T - RED R
HE-_Z-—=F=A=+—HILFEX
£

RAEBREORBERARERTZRAE
BRSSP ERE R L ER
24258 (2 —=F : FREAERK
12,321.477%7T) » 516,998,550/ 7T
—ZT—=4 :35,560,000/&7T) ° FTH
EHEREE —E—NE=A=+—
BIEFESH -

RZE—=%F+—A+—H8 &QFH
EEgHAMEERMANRESERS
HKRE  SRE@EKRSEL - HiE
8,000,000/ 7T - FTERREHIERRF A
IR o

AReEEgERENEE T —UF
—A=+—HI1EHEA 320,000,000
TTZARBRE « BRE®BR0.04 BT ©
ZEVBHRRTERMZEMRE -

136

eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2013/14



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O EIRRM

30 Cash generated from operations 30 KEFBRE

2014 2013
—F-mF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Profit before income tax BR P15 55 A2 7 27,933 50,825
Adjustments for: AT RIEEITHFE
Depreciation e 14 11,269 9,945
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BEX
plant and equipment REEE 6 413 1,198
Share of profits of joint ventures JEIRAENEZER 1 (1,776) (1,022)
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 W IE R E B S
receivables 17 11 48
Finance income BhE WA 9 (1,147) (976)
Finance costs &R AR 9 1,894 1,724
Professional expenses incurred AT ETRTEER
in connection with HERT
the Company'’s Listing 17,626 -
Share-based payments granted to ETEEREEW
directors and employees RS 23 1,696 -
Changes in working capital: LiBESEE
— Inventories - %‘ﬁ 613 (888)
— Trade receivables 5 R (587) 1,094
— Other receivables and - ,ﬁ\f’ﬂﬁguﬁ IE&
prepayments TERTRIE 62 (3,846)
— Trade payables \%JEHT,/\IE 389 391
— Accruals and other payables - FE.:‘I'/TJ\IE&
EP@JEH,TA 1,810 2,487
— Amounts due to directors - EBRESK 350 -
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 60,556 60,980

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

75/\\/\13?5/54%//|L§43§¢' CHEYE - BE

REEFR

SHREBRE

HK$'000
TFHET
Net book amount (Note 14) REDFE(MFE14) 415 4,328
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « BE RBHEEE
equipment (Note 6) (KtzE6) (413) (1,198)
Proceeds from disposal (Note) HEEZIE (M) 2 3,130
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31 Contingencies
Other than those financial guarantee contracts as disclosed
in Note 33(d), the Group and the Company did not have any
material significant contingent liabilities.

32 Commitments

(a) Capital commitment

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for is
as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

T

31 HRAREH
B 33(d) R R B MR Z M B RA )
oh o REBMRAATLEFMEAKR
a1 -

32 EiE
(a) BAXREE

BERIHEI RFHERBHE AR
W

2014 2013

—E—-MF —_ZT—=

HK$°000
FERT

HK$'000
TAT

855 2,570

(b) Operating lease commitments — Group

The Group leases various stores and premises under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms
are between 1 to 5 years. The future aggregate minimum
lease payments are as follows:

(b) EEARAS - FEH

REBRB AP HELESHE R
A Z BT REEFT o HEANF—
ZRE RRENHEHSLEN
™

2014
—E2-mF =

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Not later than 1 year —F LR 14,499 5,555
Later than 1 year and not later —FUE - RAFEUT

than 5 years 13,358 2,090

27,857 7,645
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32 Commitments (continued) 32 A ;
(b) Operating lease commitments — Group (Continued) (b) REHERAE -—X&EH(»)
The Group leases machinery, office equipment and AEERBITAIBEE&SHE S
billboard under non-cancellable operating lease A  RAERERESE -
agreements. The lease terms are between 1 to 5 years. The FENT—Z2RF - AKEMNKE
future aggregate minimum lease payments are as follows: HemsEmn T
2014
—E-ImF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Not later than 1 year —F LR 349 586
Later than 1 year and not later —FUE - RAFEUT
than 5 years 610 722
959 1,308
33 Related party transactions 33 BEARS
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has WE— U EEXEETERITEER
the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise control or significant BARAFBIREPE AREF TG #ERXE
influence over the Group in making financial and operating K2 S B\ FHEAERARE -
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals RZIA - BBEFAAEBABIETES
(being members of key management personnel, significant BEAE FEREL HEENES
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other entities KEKE)REMETRE  iEY 5 A5
and include entities which are under the significant influence of ARNAEBEEREATENETE - %
related parties of the Group where those parties are individuals. HEESHE T IR AERE -

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.
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33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BEARXS )
The directors of the Company are of the view that the following RANTEERE AT ALENE
companies were related parties that had transactions or balances BT SR ERHEE S

with the Group:

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

HERER BRAREENER

Mr. She Siu Kee William Executive director of the Company

NGET ARRPTES

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai Executive director of the Company

BB RE RAFHHITES

Mr. Fung Hong Keung Executive director of the Company

IR RAFHHITES

Mr. Leung Wai Ming Non-executive director of the Company

REREE RRFHFERITES

Mr. Leung Yat Pang Non-executive director of the Company

R—lEkE RRFHFERITES

Mr. Lam Shing Kai Non-executive director of the Company

MAERE RRFHFERITES

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki Non-executive director of the Company

HEHEAE RRFHFERITES

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen Independent non-executive director of the Company

SRR e RATBNBIIFRITES

Mr. Chan Chi Yu Independent non-executive director of the Company

BREMEE RATBINBIIFRITES

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah Independent non-executive director of the Company

BEERL RATBINBIIFRITES

Ms. Luk Mei Yan Independent non-executive director of the Company

PR B A+ RATBNBIIFRITES

Mr. Yip Chi Man Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

EFrR%EE REBMB LR FEZERERS

E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Joint venture of a subsidiary of the Group
AEBMBLRARNGERE
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33 BEARZ @) .y

33 Related party transactions (continued)

Name of related party

BELER

Relationship with the Group
BEASEE R

E-Print Bannershop Limited

E-Print Bannershop

CTP Limited

Promise Properties Limited

RERMEERAR

Promise International Limited

R B AR AR

Profit More Rich Limited
BEZHRAF

Gain More Investment Limited
VVV Limited

GSM Limited

E-Print Global Trading Limited

King Profit International Limited

EFERERRA]

Print Art Production Centre Limited

eprint Limited (Note)
eprint Limited (&)

Joint venture of a subsidiary of the Group
REBWBATIMNAEDE

Jointly controlled by a party among the Controlling Shareholders and
a third party

B — BIEARR M — R 5 =7 KREH

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B T P AR A SR A

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

H A TR AR R A

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B T P AR A SR A

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

H A TR A AR R A

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B T PR AR A SR A

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

H A TR A AR R A

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B T PR AR A SR A%

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

H A TR A AR R AE

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B T PR A A SR A%

Controlled by Mr Yip Chi Man
BB R e A

Ultimate holding company
BUERAT

Note: B E

AR Aeprint Limited#2 4l c R =T —MFE= A
=+—H - eprint Limited B 4N 2 7159% &9 i& {5
(ZZ—=F : 78%)WAERBRREZEE - £F
R ABeprint Limited (REBE LB FE MR AR
A REABMEKRIERAR

The Company is controlled by eprint Limited, which owns 59% of the Company’s
shares as at 31 March 2014 (2013: 78%) and is beneficially owned by the
Controlling Shareholders. The directors consider eprint Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, being the immediate and the ultimate holding company.
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33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BELIRZ 2
(a) Transactions with related parties - Group and (a) EHEEINXRE -—XKEBRRK
Company: NF
The Group AEE
The following transactions were undertaken by the Group AEBEHERGEH BETINTIRZS -

with related parties.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related RARIEERE  BEAIRINIE
party transactions were carried out in the normal course of BEKBEPEAEBHE@BEN
business and at terms negotiated between the Group and P2 TE O GRFR L HETT -

the respective related parties:

2014
—B-—mE

HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TAT

Rental expense of plants and FER B REBNEE &
machinery, premises and carpark ~ #28 - V¥ R(SEEIFHE
in Hong Kong payable or paid (i) F ()

— CTP Limited — CTP Limited 4,425 4,847
— Profit More Rich Limited - BE%BRAF 492 456
— Promise Properties Limited — RABEMEFR QA 1,358 1,230
- VVV Limited - VVV Limited 2,000 1,060
— GSM Limited — GSM Limited - 23
- King Profit International Limited - EFBEEER A 322 312

8,597 7,928
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33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BEAFKE @) .
(a) Transactions with related parties — Group and (a) EHEEFNXZ -—FKEBERXK !
Company: (Continued) YNCIRNE )
The Group (Continued) NEREE)

2014 2013
—B—NF —F—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

Rental expense of stores payable  FEfTskE I FImHE S H ()

or paid (i)

— E-Print Bannershop Limited — E-Print Bannershop Limited 1,906 890

— E-Print Bannershop — E-Print Bannershop 66 414

1,972 1,304

I. T. training services income JE W sk B OB R R A S

receivable or received (i) Rk 7% WA ()

— E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. - 675
I. T. license fee income receivable YR sk 2 W& s RHThE AR B LA ()

or received (i)

— E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 187 -
Pre-press processing and JE W s 2 W ED AT N T f2

customer service fee receivable BEPRBE)

or received (i)

— E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 839 -
Emolument payable or paid to (i) FEf &k < BM ()

— Mr. Yip Chi Man -EFrR%E 562 531
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33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BELIRZ 2
(a) Transactions with related parties - Group and (a) EHBEEINRS —FAEERK
Company: (Continued) YNCIGE )
The Group (Continued) NEREE)

2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT

Management fee income receivable J&Us sk 2 W& 58 2 I A ()
or received (i)

— CTP Limited — CTP Limited 180 720
- Promise Properties Limited - RERMEARR AT 45 180
- VVV Limited - VVV Limited 45 180
270 1,080
Interest income receivable JE U =k 2 ORI B A

or received (ii)
— CTP Limited — CTP Limited = 585
— Promise Properties Limited —-RERFMEARR AT = 76
- VVV Limited - VVV Limited - 140
- 801

Subcontracting income receivable &3k 2 Y o #IU A (i)
or received (i)
— Print Art Production Centre - ERERLER AT
Limited - 177

Subcontracting charge payable JEfH s B S INHIER A (i)

or paid (i)
— Print Art Production Centre - ENEEUERLBR AT
Limited - 206
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B O EIRRM

33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BELXRZ @
(a) Transactions with related parties - Group and (a) HEEITNRE —XEEREX
Company: (Continued) YNCIRNE )
The Company AATE

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Management fee income receivable J& U sk 2 U & 58 & I A (1)
or received (i)

— Promise Properties Limited - RERFMEAR AT 8,182 -
— Invoice Limited - ERERIER AR 387 -
— Design Easy Limited - RS (EB)BRRAT] 21 -
8,590 -
Dividend income receivable JE U 3k B AR B A
or received
— Promise Network Printing —- RERFH LERIGER AR
Limited 28,951 -

Notes: B3

(i) These transactions are carried out on terms agreed with the counter- (i) ZERGDHRARGHER B EER
parties in the ordinary course of business. HBAR R TE RS FGETT -

(ii) Interest income on amounts due from related parties (Note 33(e)) is (ii) FE U R i 05 5RE (BT sE33(e)) 2 FI &
carried out on terms agreed with the counter-parties in the ordinary WAREZZFEFT R B EEBBES
course of business. TR RFETT -

(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEBEAESHMH
Details of the key management compensation are disclosed TEBEREBEASTM o FBERE
in Note 8 to this report. RARTREHTFES o
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33 BELIRZ @)
() BEFFTIREIER EHE - K
£ :

33 Related party transactions (continued)

(c) Guarantees/securities provided by related
parties — Group:

(d)

Guarantees/securities provided by certain related parties
for borrowings (Note 26) were as follows:

Joint guarantees provided by

certain parties among the > HEIER

ETEERCTP Limited 21t

ETRE L pEE (ME26) ik
HAER ERMOT -

2014
—B-—mE

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
THETT

HK$°000
FERT

directors and CTP Limited - 5,987
Joint guarantees provided by certain 2 F & 124t 7 HEER

parties among the directors 65,000 65,000
Guarantees provided by Y R AR T R

Mr. Yip Chi Man - 3,000

All the guarantees provided by the related parties have
been released subsequently up to the date of report.

Financial guarantee contracts - Group:

Promise Network Printing Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, and certain parties among the directors have jointly
provided guarantees to secure the mortgage loans of the
following related companies.

The mortgage loan balances of related companies were as
follows:

(d)

HEE T RENAEZERENEE
W& B R -

BBREREN —XEH :

Rea b EERIA R AR (A EE
—HEMEAR) RETESERIG
ATRZERRIMIRIBER - KRR
HIER

RIE R RIRIBERAERINT

2014 2013

kA —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
CTP Limited CTP Limited 5,351 51,976
Promise Properties Limited RBEFYEBRA A - 11,241
VVV Limited VVV Limited = 23,637
Profit More Rich Limited BEZHRAF] = 4,370
King Profit International Limited Z B R AR A F] - 2,742
5,351 93,966

Under the terms of the financial guarantee contracts, the
guarantors will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments
when due.

All of the financial guarantee contracts have been released
subsequently up to the date of report.

RIBIEIERA LRGN - BRA
KR ZRERERARE IR
B[R R A K

BB ERANCREERSH
HATRBRRR o
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AP HRERN T
33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BEIRZ @ i
(e) Balances with related parties — Group and (e) HBEEFEH -—LKEERAEAD
Company: Cil
The Group AEEH
2013
—E-=fF
HK$'000
FHET
Amounts due from related FEU BRE A B FIR
companies
E-Print Bannershop Limited E-Print Bannershop Limited 81 54
E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 398 168
Print Art Production Centre Limited ENZZUERLHIR AT = 73
eprint Limited eprint Limited _ 1
479 296
Certain directors of the Group and the following related AEEBETEETRUTHEER
companies are in common. Pursuant to the Hong Kong BlZEE - REBEBEBQFTEMI(E
Companies Ordinance (as effective from 1 March 2014) “E—NNFE=ZA—BRER)E
Section 383(1)(d), the maximum amount outstanding are 383(N(A)VfE » MAKREELEN
as follows: N

2014 2013
—T—mE ==

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

Profit More Rich Limited BEZHARAA 1 5,513

Gain More Investment Limited B R EBR AT = 1

CTP Limited CTP Limited 195 20,917

Promise Properties Limited R MEBRAA 49 2,518

VVV Limited VVV Limited a7 3,984

E-Print Global Trading Limited E-Print Global Trading Limited - 16

eprint Limited eprint Limited 1 1
The amounts due from related companies are unsecured, JEW R E A RIIEAEER 28
interest-free and are repayable on demand. The fair values RIBAEE - Z5&#BN AR E

of these balances approximate their carrying values. BEAREERS
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33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BEARE &)
(e) Balances with related parties - Group and (e) EHEAESEHR - FTEBRELD
Company: (Continued) o)
The Group (Continued) REE#E)
2014 2013
—E-lmF —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due to directors EREERE
Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBETE 50 _
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai ®wmREEE 20 _
Mr. Fung Hong Keung TR E 20 _
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEE 35 _
Mr. Lam Shing Ki MAEESE 35 _
Mr. Leung Wai Ming RERLEE 35 _
Mr. Leung Yat pang 25k E 35 _
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen B e A 30 _
Mr. Chan Chi Yu PR A 30 _
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEEEEL 30 _
Ms. Luk Mei Yan PB4 30 _
350 -
The payable balances with directors are denominated BB E Y ALY A TIHE
in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, interest free and are BAEEE .« 4o REREREY
repayable on demand. The fair values of these balances BB oo AN N BRI
approximate their carrying values. ER
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B O EIRRM

33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BELSRZ @ T
(e) Balances with related parties — Group and (e) HBEFER -—FAEBERERD !

Company: (Continued) A )

The Company AT

2014 2013
—E-—mE

=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T

Amount due from the ultimate FEUNR R IER N T EIE
holding company

eprint Limited eprint Limited = 1

Amount due from a subsidiary

Promise Network Holding Limited

ER—EHEQR

Promise Network

Holding Limited 19,519 -
Amounts due from fellow FEUE R M E A RRIE
subsidiaries
Promise Network Printing Limited — #R#& 5 #8_E ENRIAG R 22 7] 72,923 -
Invoice Limited ZERIBR A A 387 -
Design Easy Limited BEL S (BE)BRAF 21 -
73,331 -

The amounts due from the ultimate holding company, a
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and are repayable on demand. The fair values of these
balances approximate their carrying values.

FEY R ZER DT - —HEH B RR
K [F MR R RIA R EER - %
BRIBEAER - REEBRNDAR
EBEEEKEERS
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33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BERIRXZ @

(e) Balances with related parties - Group and
Company: (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Certain directors of the Company and the following related
companies are in common. Pursuant to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Section 161(B)(1)(d), the maximum
amount outstanding are as follows:

(e)

HRELSABR - XTXEEREAD
A )

PANCINE D)
ARAETESENTA/AUTHER
AIZEE - RIEFFERAUERMIE
161(B)(1)(d) 5k » & AR IEE B
LI

un

2014 2013
—E-lmF —ZT—=

HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

eprint Limited eprint Limited

Promise Network Holding Limited ~ Promise Network
Holding Limited

Promise Network Printing Limited — #R&& R #_EEIRI A R 2 7

Invoice Limited ERERIERAF]
Design Easy Limited HEH(BEB)BRAF

1 1

19,580 -
72,923 -
387 -

21 -

Amount due to a subsidiary B — M E LD EMIEA

Promise Network Printing Limited  R&& 48 EEDRI AR 2 7

2013
—E—=F

HK$'000
THET

= 5,515
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In May 2014, the Group formed a joint venture company
“e-banner Limited” with TBC Group Limited, an
independent third party, which is engaged in banner
design and printing business in Hong Kong.

& Ot B o
33 Related party transactions (continved) 33 BEARS =) .
(e) Balances with related parties — Group and (e) HBEFER -—FAEBERERD g
Company: (Continued) A )
The Company (Continued) ARE(E)
2013
—E-=fF
HK$'000
FHET
Amounts due to directors JENEEFHIE
Mr. She Siu Kee William RAELE 50 -
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai TRIAESEE 20 -
Mr. Fung Hong Keung RS RS8R S A 20 -
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHE 35 -
Mr. Lam Shing Ki MORIESRE 35 -
Mr. Leung Wai Ming RERATE 35 -
Mr. Leung Yat Pang 2—lE%kE 35 -
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen TR A 30 -
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BREM LA 30 -
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEEERL 30 -
Ms. Luk Mei Yan Fex B4t 30 -
350 -
The payable balances with a subsidiary and directors are E—REIM B AR REE 2 &R
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, interest- BITINE - WARREKR  £88%4
free and are repayable on demand. NEREFEE -
The fair values of these balances approximate their carrying ZEEBRO AR EBEEAREER
values. & o
34 Subsequent events 34 REBMBREH
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following AR EHMESAFEEEN R
significant events took place subsequent to 31 March 2014: —NE=ZA=+—HEBEENEREHY
LU
- On 9 May 2014, the Board of Directors resolved the - RIEZ--MERAAB - EEeZ
cancellation of 12,500,000 share options granted on 13 REHEE-_T—=Ft+—A+=H
November 2013. i #912,500,00017 BEARHE

- RZIZE-—WNFRA AEEHE-—-
# I8 % = A TBC Group Limited
B — & & & % [ e-banner
Limited] - F2XBKANEERSE
MEE AR R DRSS
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Four-year Financial Summary —

2014 2013
—EB-mFE T =%

HK$'000 HK$'000

2012 2011
—2—-F —Z2—F
HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT THETT THETT FAT
Results E35
Year ended 31 March BE=HA=1—H
LFE

Profit attributable to equity holders of ANAR#EZRIFAE A

the Company JE 153 A 21,577 42,438 39,773 22,912
Assets and liabilities BEERAE
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
Total assets BERR 253,070 191,956 175,494 144,466
Total liabilities BEER (88,276) (120,031)  (107,479)  (105,675)
Net assets BE T 164,794 71,925 68,015 38,791

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years ended #HZz—-ZT——F  —T——FK-_FT—=

31 March 2011, 2012 and 2013 which were extracted fromthe =ZA=4+—RB I FENEELREENEER
Company’s prospectus dated 20 November 2013 have been prepared ZE(fEéEg AR HEBEA-_ZT—=F+—AH
on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the Z—+HMBRKRERR)IIREBEELAEERSR - A
Group structure, at the time the Company’s shares were listed on the — FARZN & EH) 2 4E (AR 7 B% 15 7B 2
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, had been in existence throughout iR F TR AEBEEENZBEAZEFED R

those years. fE) -
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